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 1      HEARING
 2      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Good afternoon, and
 3  welcome.  My name is John Rhodes, and I am
 4  the Chair of the State Energy Planning
 5  Board, the president and CEO of Planning
 6  State Energy Research and Development
 7  Authority.
 8  I would like to welcome you here to the
 9  Gold Room at Brooklyn College.  We thank
10  Brooklyn College for their hospitality in
11  hosting us and ask you to recall that all of
12  us are their guests, and thereby we ask that
13  you exercise decorum, and one of those rules
14  is that no signs on poles.  There may be
15  others, but that's the one I am aware of.
16  I would also look, I would like now
17  introduce to you the other representatives
18  of the planning board joining me today.
19  Judy Lee, executive Deputy of the Public
20  Service Commission, and Melvin Norris,
21  Director of the Office of Environmental
22  Justice At the Department of Environmental
23  Conservation.
24  This is a hearing to accept public
25  comments on the 2014 draft, which was
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 1      HEARING
 2  approved by the State Energy Planning Board
 3  on January 7, 2014, and made available on
 4  the Energy Plan website, energyplan.NY.gov.
 5  The plan was issued in accordance with
 6  Article 6 of the energy law.  Public notice
 7  of the issuance of the plan and the notice
 8  of this public hearing were published in the
 9  State Register on January 29th.
10  The draft plan consists of two volumes.
11  The first volume provides 15 key initiatives
12  to advance the State's energy future.  The
13  second volume addresses energy uses, its
14  sources and impact and provides detailed
15  background that was used to develop the
16  overarching vision and initiatives in the
17  first volume.
18  This, the State Energy Plan is the
19  result of serious, thoughtful work which
20  envisions an energy system that is clean,
21  flexible, affordable, resilient, reliable.
22  The initiative to achieve that mission focus
23  on five areas:  Improving energy
24  affordability, unleashing the power of
25  private sector finance, providing a more
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 1      HEARING
 2  resilient and flexible power grid, giving
 3  customers more control over their energy use
 4  and choices, aligning energy innovation with
 5  market demand.  The plan outlines to the
 6  achieve those initiatives, long-term policy
 7  goals, near-term action items and meaningful
 8  metrics.
 9  This is one of six public hearing
10  sessions that are planned to receive public
11  comments.  Future sessions are scheduled in
12  Manhattan, Long Island, Buffalo and
13  Syracuse.  Written comments on the draft
14  plan will also be accepted through April 30,
15  and information on submitting those written
16  comments can be found on the Energy Plan
17  website.  If you decide to submit written
18  comments, please do so as soon as possible
19  so that they can be considered as carefully
20  as possible.  All public comments, whether
21  oral or written, will be considered by the
22  Energy Planning Board as it works for
23  additions for the final plan.  All comments
24  will count equally regardless of how they
25  were received.  The planning board has
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 1      HEARING
 2  targeted issuance of the final plan of
 3  spring of 2014.
 4  The process today is simple.  Those who
 5  want to comment at this hearing have been
 6  asked to sign in upon arriving.  Your name
 7  will be called one at a time for you to
 8  speak.
 9  When your name is called, please come to
10  the podium to provide your statement, and I
11  will also call the name of the person who is
12  the following speaker so that we can move
13  smoothly.  We have a court reporter here
14  today to provide a transcript to the
15  Planning Board of everything that is said
16  today.  It is very important that there only
17  be one speaker at a time so that the
18  reporter can clear -- can hear clearly.  The
19  speaker should address their comments in the
20  direction of the microphone and please make
21  an effort to speak clearly and slowly.
22  It is also very important that those in
23  attendance be courteous to the speaker so
24  that his or her comments can be transcribed
25  accurately by the court reporter.  If you
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 1      HEARING
 2  provide a statement and have a written
 3  version with you, it would be helpful if you
 4  could provide that to us, either today or
 5  following the hearing, so we can provide
 6  those to the court reporter to assist in
 7  providing the transcript.
 8  All speakers are asked to focus on the
 9  things that pertain to the Draft Energy Plan
10  only.  Your comments should be as succinct
11  as possible so we can hear from as many of
12  you as possible.  We have set a five-minute
13  deadline for that purpose, but of course
14  after everyone has had a chance to address
15  the board, repeat speakers may be afforded
16  another five minutes should there be any
17  time at the end of the hearing.
18  Formal presentations such as PowerPoint
19  are not being allowed today.  Again, we want
20  to hear from as many of you as possible.  As
21  this is a statement hearing, the Planning
22  Board is not entertaining questions.  This
23  is an opportunity for us to hear feedback
24  from you on the draft planning.  Those who
25  want to comment but do not want to speak
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 1      HEARING
 2  publicly or do not get a chance to do so,
 3  again, can submit written comments via our
 4  website and again, that is www.energyplan.
 5  NY.gov.
 6  With that, I want to thank you all for
 7  coming today, and if there are any questions
 8  about the process, we can take those at this
 9  time.  Seeing none, I will call our first
10  speaker, Eric Legeer, to be followed by
11  Aubrey Lethbridge.
12      MR. LEGEER: Good afternoon, everyone.
13  My name is Eric John Legeer.  I am the
14  project coordinator here at Brooklyn College
15  for NYPIRG, the New York Public Interest
16  Group, New York's largest, most effective
17  environmental consumer advocacy group.
18  It invokes a feeling of nostalgia for me
19  to be here because my first action as an
20  activist as I started was in 2007 helping to
21  implement and shape New York State's Energy
22  Plan under Spitzer.  We were supporting a
23  platform of 15 by 15.  15 percent energy
24  reduction by 2015.  Here we are in 2014.  I
25  am glad to be here.
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 1      HEARING
 2  Now, New York is my adopted city.  I am
 3  from Canandaigua, New York, what I like to
 4  call the crown jewel of the Finger Lakes,
 5  and that will be most of the basis and theme
 6  of my comments here today.
 7  I commend, I commend the DEC for taking
 8  action on meeting that 80 percent by 2050
 9  and covering CO2 emissions by 2050 that the
10  IPCC, Nassau and countless other groups have
11  enforced, but I do not want it to be a
12  leeway into natural gas.  I see what's going
13  on.  There is a rotten smell in the air that
14  natural gas is going to get a go, and we are
15  going to have to establish an infrastructure
16  to justify fracking in New York State.
17  Once again, I am from the Finger Lakes.
18  It makes me cry and it rips my soul apart to
19  think that even maybe one well can be
20  drilled around where my mother and my
21  brothers and my sisters, my family still
22  live.
23  The economy there is largely based off
24  of tourism.  Canandaigua Lake at one point
25  was second-most expensive lake to live have
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 1      HEARING
 2  on next to Lake Tahoe in the nation.
 3  Countless famous wealthy people have places
 4  there.  They just won't go for it.
 5  So I am begging you on the DEC, please
 6  implement wind and solar like our program
 7  the Solar Jobs Initiative, the $1.6 billion
 8  in tax cuts for manufacturers, for retailers
 9  and distributors.  Beautiful.  Let's
10  implement that and get clean, renewable
11  energy now.  We have the solutions.  No
12  fracking in New York State.  No LNG plants.
13  No LNG pipelines.  Keep big gas and oil out
14  of New York State, out of my first home.
15  Keep the pipelines out of my new home.  I am
16  begging of you, don't give a go to natural
17  gas or fracking.  It is not the answer
18  bridge fuel that they say it's cracked up to
19  be.  Thank you very much for your time and
20  consideration, and have a wonderful day.
21      MR. RHODES: Thank you, Eric.  Next up
22  is Aubrey Lethbridge followed by David
23  Alicea.
24      MR. LETHBRIDGE: Good afternoon.  Thank
25  you for this opportunity to make comments on
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 1      HEARING
 2  the 2014 Draft Energy Plan.
 3  I am Aubrey Lethbridge.  I am the
 4  project coordinator for NYPIRG at the
 5  College of Staten Island.  Students at the
 6  College of Staten Island are especially
 7  concerned with this issue because a large --
 8  I will be focusing my comments on how the
 9  plan addresses nuclear power.
10  The students at the College of Staten
11  Island are especially concerned with this
12  issue because a large part of Staten Island
13  lies within 50 miles of the Indian Point
14  nuclear reactors in Westchester County.
15  While we applaud Governor Cuomo for his
16  steadfast opposition to the relicensing of
17  these aging and dangerous facilities and
18  commend PSC and NYSERDA for their efforts to
19  ensure that New Yorkers will have a reliable
20  source of replacement power when the Indian
21  Point reactors are retired.
22  However, the risks of New York's
23  reliance on nuclear power are given short
24  shrift in the Draft State Energy Plan.  The
25  six commercial power reactors in New York
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 1      HEARING
 2  currently represent 14 percent of New York's
 3  power generation capacity, but a whopping
 4  29 percent of our electricity generation.
 5  This dependence on nuclear power to meet our
 6  electricity needs is troubling on many
 7  levels, and the plan does little to correct
 8  it.  In fact, there is very little
 9  discussion at all of natural energy in the
10  plan, which is also troubling, considering
11  its dominance in New York and the enormous
12  health, environmental and financial risks
13  posed by nuclear power.
14  The plan acknowledges there are many
15  potential environmental health risks from
16  nuclear power including:  Radioactive air
17  emissions from routine operations; potential
18  accidental releases of radiation, including
19  from earthquakes, accidents, and terrorist
20  attacks; leaks of radioactive water, which
21  can contaminate drinking water and food
22  supplies; transportation of nuclear fuel by
23  rail and truck; and onsite storage of high-
24  level radioactive waste.
25  The plan also acknowledges specific
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 1      HEARING
 2  vulnerabilities with the Indian Point
 3  nuclear reactors, including that Indian
 4  Point Unit 3 has the highest risk of a core
 5  meltdown from an earthquake of all the
 6  reactors in the United States because it was
 7  built on top of an active fault line.  The
 8  evacuation plan for Indian Point is also
 9  inadequate in the event of a serious
10  accident.  More than 17 million people live
11  within 50 miles of the plant in the
12  evacuation zone.
13  However, the plan fails to acknowledge
14  the increasing unreliability of State's
15  aging nuclear reactors or the possibility of
16  early nuclear retirements, planned or
17  otherwise, in upstate New York.  This is a
18  major oversight in the plan.  Most of New
19  York's reactors were built in the late 1960s
20  and early 1970s, and have been operating
21  well past their expected life span; the
22  three Oswego reactors used the same
23  technology as the reactors that melted down
24  at the Fukushima Daiichi plant in 2011.
25  Various financial analysts have
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 1      HEARING
 2  predicted that some of the upstate reactors
 3  are at risk of early retirement due to
 4  economic losses.
 5  The State should be planning for the
 6  eventual closure of all nuclear plants, with
 7  a particular focus on these potential early
 8  retirements.  If planned for properly, these
 9  retirements would create an opportunity for
10  massive renewable energy development in the
11  state.
12  With regard to Indian Point, the plan
13  discusses the current relicensing proceeding
14  for Indian Point Unit 2, whose license
15  expired in 2013, and Unit 3, whose license
16  will expire in 2015.  The State of New York
17  is currently petitioning the Nuclear
18  Regulatory Commission to deny Entergy's
19  petition to renew the operating permits for
20  each of these plants.
21  However, the plan envisions replacing
22  Indian Point's roughly 2,000 megawatts of
23  power with natural gas.  This plan should
24  instead lay out a strategy for replacing
25  Indian Point's energy through a combination
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 1      HEARING
 2  of transmission upgrades, energy efficiency
 3  and renewable energy.  A 2012 report by
 4  Synapse Energy shows that we can fully and
 5  cost-effectively replace Indian Point's
 6  power with equal investments in energy
 7  efficiency and renewable power sources
 8  alone, with no impact to the reliability of
 9  the region's energy supply.
10  We need to commit to advancing safe and
11  clean energy solutions in New York.  Nuclear
12  power is dangerous, expensive and
13  unreliable.  We can replace the power, but
14  we can't replace the lives.  New York should
15  take this opportunity to move in a safer and
16  more sustainable direction.
17  Thank you again for this opportunity.
18      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
19      MR. ALICEA: Good afternoon.  My name is
20  David Alicea, and I am with the Sierra Club
21  here in New York City and on Long Island;
22  and I am here representing thousands of
23  Sierra Club members and supporters in this
24  area, many of whom are actually going to be
25  here today and be speaking later on.  And I
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 1      HEARING
 2  want to say thank you, first of all, of the
 3  work your agency and staff put into this
 4  plan.  It's a tremendous amount of work and
 5  thank you for coming down and listening to
 6  all of us today.
 7  In late 2012, at the devastation of
 8  Superstorm Sandy, Governor Cuomo made it
 9  clear:  Climate change is real, and we have
10  to act.  Since then the governor has made a
11  strong commitment to solar New York's sun,
12  and this plan's goal of reducing greenhouse
13  gas emissions 80 percent by 2050 shows that
14  the governor understands climate change is a
15  serious issue.
16  Unfortunately, this plan has more
17  questions than answers.  It comes to how
18  gets to the 2050 goal.  The real plan must
19  include enforceable interim steps to reach
20  80 percent reduction by 2050 and must reject
21  any further investments in fossil fuels and
22  prioritize.
23  New Yorkers have said time and time
24  again we can't frack and burn our way to a
25  clean energy economy.  While the governor's
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 1      HEARING
 2  commitment to solar is an encouraging start,
 3  this plan should ramp up renewable energy
 4  and commit to the goal of 50 percent by
 5  2025, and pledge to continue our energy
 6  efficiency program.
 7  It also needs to do more than just pay
 8  lip service to some of the best
 9  opportunities that we have to build a new
10  clean energy economy.  Right now off the
11  coast of New York City and Long Island there
12  are two major offshore wind proposals.  We
13  need the State and Governor Cuomo to
14  prioritize energy development and make sure
15  the projects are moving this year.  Not only
16  has it helped us meet our goals to reduce
17  emissions, but it will create jobs and score
18  some needed investments across New York.
19  New York has a manufacturing base, the
20  educated work force and the port
21  infrastructure to become home to the
22  American offshore wind industry.  This
23  energy plan should be jumping at the
24  opportunity and help make New York a real
25  clean energy leader.


Page 18


 1      HEARING
 2  This plan must also make sure we move
 3  you away from further investments in gas
 4  infrastructure and protect our families and
 5  water from fracking.  Further spending on
 6  natural gas infrastructure will lock in the
 7  reliance for fossil fuels for decades,
 8  increase demand for fracking in our state,
 9  and help fund the devastating gas extraction
10  occurring in states nearby.  Instead of
11  wasting millions of dollars and fossil
12  fuels, we can use those resources to invest
13  in clean renewable, energy like wind and
14  solar.
15  The Sierra Club is asking, let's turn,
16  not burn our way to a clean future.  While
17  we are encouraged by the goal of 80 percent
18  by 2050, the action on climate change cannot
19  wait until then.  Superstorm Sandy showed us
20  our communities are at risk now.  Will the
21  Long Island state beaches and Coney Island
22  boardwalks still be there for our children?
23  Will families that have spent generations on
24  Staten Island or Rockaways be forced to
25  move?  This is what's at stake.  We need
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 1      HEARING
 2  Governor Cuomo and this energy plan to make
 3  sure we are protecting our communities.  We
 4  need a strong commitment out of renewable
 5  energy and a real plan that explains how we
 6  can get there.
 7  Thank you once again for your time.  I
 8  hope you take my statements and those of our
 9  friends and allies that will be speaking
10  today and use those to revisit this energy
11  plan and help make New York a real leader.
12      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
13  Marian Ronan to be followed by Frank
14  Fraley.
15      DR. RONAN: I am Dr. Marian Ronan, and I
16  am active in the climate action circle of
17  the Grail movement, which is an
18  international women's movement with a large
19  group here in New York City, and my comments
20  are going to address particularly the place
21  of fracking with the energy plan.
22  As The New York Times reported on
23  February the 13th, a new study in the
24  Journal of Science disputes the claim of the
25  natural gas industry that natural gas as a
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 1      HEARING
 2  quote/unquote "bridge fuel" is good for the
 3  climate.
 4  Natural gas actually contributes to
 5  global warming when you take into account
 6  the large amounts of methane, a greenhouse
 7  gas 30 times more potent than carbon
 8  dioxide, that escapes into the atmosphere
 9  during the fracking process.  This is in
10  addition to the fact that a large amount of
11  carbon dioxide is expelled into the
12  atmosphere by other aspects of fracking such
13  as the massive trucking of the liquified
14  natural gas and water, not to mention the
15  overuse and pollution of our ground water.
16  The solution to the leakage of methane
17  into the atmosphere that is contributing so
18  seriously to climate change we are told is
19  more regulation and inspection of fracking
20  sites.  But as the people of Charleston,
21  West Virginia discovered after a chemical
22  spill poisoned their water last month, there
23  hardly is regulation and inspection any
24  more.  Washington gridlock and partisanship
25  has depleted the number of E.P.A.


Min-U-Script® Ellen Grauer Court Reporting Co. LLC (5) Pages 17 - 20







HEARING OF THE DRAFT STATE ENERGY PLAN 
February 19, 2014


Page 21


 1      HEARING
 2  inspectors, and the resistance to raising
 3  taxes makes it incredible that New York
 4  State will inspect fracking sites
 5  sufficiently to prevent methane leakage.
 6  Let's not wait until we are flooded out by
 7  sea level rise and extreme storms to stop
 8  the natural gas industry from poisoning our
 9  atmosphere.  I urge you to eliminate
10  fracking from the New York Energy Plan.
11  Thank you.
12      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
13  Frank Fraley to be followed by Ieva
14  Zadina.
15      MR. FRALEY: Good afternoon.  My name is
16  Frank Fraley, and I am the president of
17  SHARE.  SHARE is a non-profit -- group of
18  non-profit organizations committed to
19  ensuring the continued supply of reliable,
20  clean and affordable electricity for all New
21  Yorkers.  For too long, high electricity
22  prices have placed an undue economic burden
23  on New York's families, businesses, and
24  businesses.  While poor air quality has led
25  to high asthma rates which place our most
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 1      HEARING
 2  vulnerable at risk.
 3  Right now we are just getting our
 4  economy back onto its feet, and the economy
 5  is beginning to strengthen.  However,
 6  community residents, small businesses,
 7  working men and women from communities
 8  across the region are still struggling.
 9  Recognizing the precarious state of our
10  economy, now is not the time to shutter a
11  source of clean, safe, affordable power in
12  this region.  And the source of power that
13  contributes 25 to 35 percent of downstate's
14  power, contributing power to this very
15  microphone, to the lights in this very room
16  at this college.
17  Furthermore, the Indian Point Energy
18  Center greatly reduces the amount of
19  pollution emitted into the atmosphere.
20  Unlike all other power plants in the
21  downstate region, Indian Point does not
22  release asthma-causing pollutants or
23  greenhouse gasses into the atmosphere.  This
24  is of great benefit to our air quality as
25  nearly all counties served by Indian Point
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 1      HEARING
 2  are consistently designated as non-
 3  attainment areas by the U.S. Environmental
 4  Protection Agency.  Clearly, we need more
 5  energy facilities like Indian Point, not
 6  fewer.
 7  For these reasons, SHARE and its member
 8  organizations firmly support the continued
 9  operation of the clean, safe and secure
10  Indian Point Energy Center, and we urge New
11  York State to ensure its continued operation
12  as part of the State's energy plan.  Thank
13  you.
14      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
15  Iena Zadina to be followed by Ling Tsou.
16      MS. ZADINA: Hello.  My name is Iena
17  Zadina.  I am a retired Methodist minister,
18  and I also belong to the Grail Movement like
19  my friend Marian, and to the Coalition
20  Against the Rockaway Pipeline.
21  I am glad that I just followed the
22  previous speaker because he kept emphasizing
23  the word "clean," and I also was an English
24  teacher, so I think about words a lot and
25  what does "clean" really mean?  I do not
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 2  think that it means simply less methane or
 3  less CO2 or less toxins of any kind.
 4  Rather, we do know from our own practical
 5  experience that clean means.  It means clean
 6  water, and you know what that feels like.
 7  It means clean air without toxins and just
 8  warm enough to keep our Earth's atmosphere
 9  livable but not warming it too much.  And we
10  know what clean soil means when it supports
11  life of many, many different living things.
12  We also know about clean politics, which
13  is when governments and the public support
14  welfare of all people for many generations.
15  I am not so sure how clean money can be.  It
16  can be perhaps.  A lot of times it needs
17  laundering, but it is pretty practical a lot
18  of times.
19  What really is clean is the sun and the
20  wind and other sources of energy such as
21  tidal waves and so forth.  So in the report
22  I am very surprised and disappointed that
23  the report by Mark Jacobson and his
24  colleagues at Stanford was not even
25  mentioned as I looked through it.  That, of
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 1      HEARING
 2  course, you know I think very well proposed
 3  a very good plan where we could have all
 4  renewable energy in New York State by 2030,
 5  and I am sure that there are many
 6  difficulties that would need to be
 7  surmounted to do it, but I do believe that
 8  New Yorkers and Americans with all of their
 9  practical abilities could do it.
10  You know, I was born right into the
11  middle of World War II, and I am so aware of
12  what America achieved when it galvanized
13  itself for World War II.  What it did was
14  just like, you know, miraculous.  We can do
15  it again and even for a greater cause than
16  to win a war.
17  So when Jacobson's report is not even
18  mentioned, I wonder how serious New York
19  State is about climate change.  And of
20  course the word has not been mentioned much
21  in recent years, but the other day even
22  Secretary of State Kerry passionately talked
23  about climate change in Indonesia, who
24  pollutes only slightly less than we do,
25  apparently; and so I am hoping the time has
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 1      HEARING
 2  come when climate change and the survival of
 3  the planet will be taken seriously, and when
 4  it does, so should Jacobson's report and
 5  many other scientists who have supported it.
 6  And I just -- one more thing, New York
 7  State is so rich in water.  Water, there is
 8  I think really nothing -- there is no more
 9  precious resource that we have.  Even now
10  Canada -- Canada has been exporting water to
11  the dry parts of the world for a long time.
12  New York State, I don't know if it does now,
13  but it will have to probably.  Let us keep
14  our water clean, and I just hope you will
15  keep that image in mind.  Save our water.
16  We cannot live without it.  One day it will
17  be more precious than gold.
18      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
19  Ling Tsou followed by David Doll.
20      MS. TSOU: I'm Ling Tsou from United for
21  Action.
22  While the Draft Energy Plan reaffirms
23  New York State's commitment to 80 percent
24  greenhouse gas reductions by 2015, with an
25  interim goal of 50 percent carbon-intensity
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 1      HEARING
 2  reductions by 2030, this plan does not lay
 3  out in details how we are going to achieve
 4  these goals.  Moreover, the plan only
 5  commits to measuring the reduction of one
 6  form of greenhouse gas, carbon dioxide,
 7  before 2030 while totally ignores the
 8  devastating impact of methane, which is the
 9  primary component of fracked natural gas.
10  Methane is a much more potent greenhouse gas
11  than carbon dioxide and lethal on climate
12  change.  The plan should specify a schedule
13  for the reduction of all forms of greenhouse
14  gas emissions with measurable benchmarks at
15  regular intervals.
16  The plan does not provide any analysis
17  for the mix of energy sources that will help
18  New York State meet the greenhouse gas
19  reduction goal and makes no commitment to
20  what percentage of New York State's energy
21  will come from renewables.  New York State
22  should set a clear target of meeting
23  100 percent of the state's power needs only
24  from renewables such as solar, wind,
25  geothermal by 2050 or before.  This plan
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 2  should identify what facilities and grid
 3  improvement are needed to achieve the goal
 4  of power New York State all by renewables.
 5  The technology for renewables is available.
 6  We just need the political will to follow
 7  through.
 8  The plan incorrectly describes natural
 9  gas as a clean energy source.  The primary
10  method of extracting natural gas nowadays is
11  by hydraulic fracturing or fracking, which
12  is a hazardous process that contaminates our
13  water, pollutes our air, poses grave danger
14  to people's health and contributes greatly
15  to climate change.  The plan clearly
16  indicates natural gas as a major part of New
17  York State's energy mix.  The plan's
18  forecast of natural gas production figures
19  seems to imply that fracking will take place
20  in New York State.  The plan also endorses
21  the increased build-out of natural gas
22  pipelines and storage infrastructure to
23  facilitate bringing in fracked natural gas
24  from outside of New York State.  Considering
25  the negative impact of fracked natural gas
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 2  on our health, economy, environment and
 3  climate, New York State must back away from
 4  its reliance on natural gas.  New York State
 5  must stop further investments in natural gas
 6  and liquified natural gas infrastructure
 7  which will only shackle us to unsustainable
 8  for fossil fuels for decades to come.  In
 9  particular, I urge Governor Cuomo to veto
10  the LNG Port Ambrose project off Jones Beach
11  near the entrance to the New York Harbor.
12  The construction and operation of LNG Port
13  Ambrose facility will further aggravate the
14  greenhouse gas emission and smog in the New
15  York air while contributing greatly to
16  climate change and exacerbate extreme
17  weather conditions.  The building of LNG
18  Port Ambrose project will increase our
19  reliance on fossil fuels and adversely
20  impact our investment in renewable energy.
21  New York State needs to commit to invest in
22  renewables which with recent cost declines,
23  wind and solar power are the lowest cost new
24  energy sources and beat fracking natural
25  gas.
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 2  The plan discusses the possible shutdown
 3  of the Indian Point nuclear reactors, and
 4  the projection of replacing it with
 5  increased natural gas powered electricity
 6  generation.  The replacement of the Indian
 7  Point nuclear reactors with natural gas
 8  power plant is a totally bad idea, and does
 9  not meet New York State's climate goals.
10  New York State must plan for the
11  decommissioning of all of its nuclear power
12  plants and abandon any plans to increase
13  energy generating capacity from nuclear
14  sources not only because of possible
15  catastrophic risks to human and
16  environmental health, a la Fukushima in
17  Japan, but nuclear power plants are
18  economically too expensive to build,
19  maintain and operate.  Converting nuclear
20  and aging and highly polluting coal and oil
21  power plants to natural gas power plants is
22  not the solution since methane's lifecycle
23  greenhouse gas emissions will only
24  exacerbate climate change and do nothing to
25  reduce New York State's carbon footprint.
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 2  New York state must seize this opportunity
 3  to invest in massive renewable energy
 4  development in our state.
 5  The plan promotes alternative fuel
 6  vehicles and commends the New York Clean
 7  Fleets Initiative which provides public
 8  money to help purchase vehicles that run on
 9  compressed or liquified natural gas.
10  However, science has shown that natural gas
11  is actually worse for the climate due to
12  methane leaks in the supply chain.  The plan
13  should implement specific targets to advance
14  electric vehicles and hydrogen fuel-cell
15  technology.  The electricity should be
16  generated from renewable energy sources.
17  In addition to increase its commitment
18  to solar, the plan must commit to invest in
19  renewable wind power both on shore and
20  offshore in New York State.  Specifically,
21  this year, New York State can purchase
22  offshore wind power to power Long Island
23  from a project under development east of
24  Montauk Point and move forward with a
25  project proposed by the New York Power
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 2  Authority in the New York Wind Energy Area
 3  off the Rockaways.
 4  The release of this draft plan offers us
 5  the perfect opportunity for New York State
 6  to move beyond our reliance on fossil fuels
 7  of the past, including natural gas and
 8  nuclear power to a bold vision and plan for
 9  a carbon free and nuclear free future
10  powered 100 percent by renewable energy
11  sources.  We cannot wait any longer in
12  scaling up massive investment in renewable
13  energy.  The retirement of dirty and
14  dangerous fossil fuel energy sources
15  including natural gas and nuclear will see a
16  need for particular attention to a host of
17  transition issues related to social and
18  economic justice.  With proper planning and
19  attention to just transition issues, these
20  social and economic impacts can be decreased
21  and addressed.  The plan does not mention
22  that's issues, and they must be included.
23  Thank you.
24      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you.
25      MS. KANTROWITZ: I am here with United
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 2  for Action and New York City for Clear Water
 3  and the Coalition Against the Rockaway
 4  Pipeline, but I am here speaking also just
 5  as myself.
 6  I was a student here at Brooklyn College
 7  40 years ago, so this is nostalgic for me
 8  also, and I know that we all want to keep
 9  Brooklyn and New York City safe and clean
10  and healthy and supplied with energy.  So I
11  thank you for the opportunity to speak here.
12  And I am glad that we are trying to look at
13  an energy plan that will make a positive
14  energy future for us; but this New York
15  State Energy Plan, this draft, is not a
16  blueprint for positive energy future for New
17  York.  In fact, it's a recipe for
18  environmental devastation, serious public
19  health problems and runaway climate change
20  because it's basically envisioning a future
21  built on natural gas, and that's what you
22  get if you continue to use natural gas and
23  other fossil fuels.  We need to be
24  transitioning completely to emission-free
25  and non-toxic renewable energy like solar
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 2  power, wind power, and small scale hydro-
 3  electric, and we need to do it now.  Not
 4  even in ten years.  Not even in five years.
 5  We need to do it yesterday, and this plan
 6  just doesn't do it.  It's too late for an
 7  all-of-the-above approach because all around
 8  us we see the planet warming, the glaciers
 9  melting, the sea levels rising and the
10  droughts and the storms becoming ever more
11  severe.
12  This plan describes natural gas as a
13  clean energy source.  Nothing could be
14  further from the truth.  We have seen
15  repeatedly and tragically how natural gas
16  extractions through fracking contaminates
17  water, pollutes the air and makes people
18  sick; but because much of this plan is
19  written in support of what is misleadingly
20  called clean energy, programs could easily
21  be directed towards expanding the use of
22  fracked gas and the infrastructure that goes
23  along with it.  Because when we are
24  concerned about fracking, we are not just
25  talking about drilling.  We are also talking
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 2  about pipelines, LNG storage facilities, the
 3  LNG Port Ambrose terminal, all of these
 4  surround us with toxins.  All of these make
 5  climate change worse, and it's painfully
 6  obvious just how biased this plan is in
 7  favor of natural gas.  The giveaway is that
 8  the plan assumes that the moratorium on high
 9  volume horizontal hydrofracking will be
10  lifted in New York State, and then it
11  predicted natural gas production in New York
12  State will triple by 2030.  It predicted
13  growth in renewables will drop to zero after
14  2020, and that's despite the document's own
15  data showing the power generation from wind
16  and solar more than doubled in New York
17  State between 1990 and 2012.
18  But instead of simply taking it as given
19  that natural gas will become our primary
20  energy source, the real energy plan should
21  be taking a major role in shaping our future
22  and making sure that it's a future built on
23  renewables so that we New Yorkers can have a
24  future.  That's where our priorities should
25  be.  The priorities should not be one of
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 2  enabling the oil and gas companies to
 3  continue increasing their profits while our
 4  health, our climate, our landscape, and our
 5  food should go to hell in a hand basket.
 6  In fact, this plan is not even really a
 7  plan because it doesn't outline clearly
 8  where we need to be and then tell us how to
 9  get there.  It can better be described as a
10  collection of predictions, predictions which
11  will become a self-fulfilling prophecy in
12  the absence of any serious attempt to set a
13  course which will be in New York State's
14  true best interest.
15  As just an example, this plan only
16  commits to measuring the reduction of one
17  greenhouse gas, carbon dioxide, before 2030;
18  but the intergovernmental panel on climate
19  change has said that methane is 34 times
20  more potent as a greenhouse gas than carbon
21  dioxide over a hundred-year period and 86
22  times more potent over 20 years.  Why then
23  is methane being ignored?  This appears to
24  be very blatant favoritism toward the oil
25  and gas industry.
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 2  The draft plan also lacks targets for
 3  energy efficiency and commits to efficiency
 4  programs only through 2020.  It encourages
 5  the use of what it calls alternative fuel
 6  vehicles, which are likely to be based on
 7  using natural gas instead of establishing
 8  specific targets to advance electric and
 9  hydrogen fuel-cell technology.
10  In what is probably its most glaring
11  deficiency, this plan makes no mention
12  whatsoever of the 2013 study headed up by
13  Stanford University Professor Mark Jacobson
14  which shows how New York can switch entirely
15  to renewables by 2030.  Very simply put,
16  switching to renewables right away is what
17  we need to do in order to attempt to avoid
18  the worst-case scenarios of climate
19  catastrophe.  It is very clear that the next
20  20 years will be crucial in that regard.  So
21  then why are we not doing this?  This energy
22  plan does not even specify what our energy
23  portfolio will look like; how much energy
24  will come from what sources.  Is that
25  because the intention is for most of it to
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 2  come from natural gas?
 3  Well, I haven't even mentioned nuclear
 4  power or the Indian Point plant until now;
 5  and the reason is because it seems so
 6  obvious that we shouldn't even be
 7  considering such a dangerous source of
 8  energy.  Okay.  Do you want to call it clean
 9  because you don't smell anything or see
10  anything?  It's radioactive.  It's
11  dangerous.  It will kill us.
12  This plan must be revised to include
13  much more aggressive goals for development
14  of solar, wind and other sustainable energy
15  technology.  It must establish much more
16  ambitious goals for energy efficiency, and I
17  would like to insist on much more rapid
18  reductions in emissions of all greenhouse
19  gases, and that means methane, not only CO2.
20  Anything less is completely unacceptable.
21  The people of New York State will not
22  stand for it.  We insist on an energy plan
23  that will not destroy our health, our
24  climate and our future.  Thank you.
25      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
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 2  Next up is David Doll, followed by
 3  Judith Canepa.
 4  First may I just ask for a process
 5  remark or we would like to keep the comments
 6  to five minutes, and Valerie will remind
 7  you.  Thank you very much.
 8  MR. Doll:  Thank you.  My name is Dave
 9  Doll.  I am with a group here in Brooklyn.
10  We are the Citizens Against the Rockaway,
11  Coalition against the Rockaway Pipeline
12  where they want to run a pipeline through
13  Gateway National Recreation Area, an area
14  that was set up for New Yorkers by an act of
15  Congress a long time ago because they
16  realized we need a place to unwind.  We
17  can't all afford to go to the Hamptons and
18  to the Jersey Shore.  So we have a place to
19  go called Riis Park.  It's a beautiful jewel
20  of a beach here in New York, accessible by
21  bus, by transit, and it's a wonderful place,
22  and they want to turn it into an industrial
23  park.  So right off the bat we have some
24  problems here.  You know, this is
25  unacceptable.
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 2  My mind is all over the place.  The
 3  gentleman who was speaking about the safety
 4  of nuclear power before might want to talk
 5  to the corpses from Chernobyl, Fukushima,
 6  people who got sick from Three-Mile Island,
 7  all of these different cases that nuclear
 8  power is not safe.  So that's kind of pretty
 9  self-evident.
10  I have met a lot of people in this anti-
11  fracking thing that's going on who are
12  trying to educate people that we believe
13  what's wrong about fracking, and I have met
14  people in Pennsylvania who have become sick
15  from the fracking process.  Their water has
16  become polluted.  While we are waiting for
17  Mr. Cuomo to come out with his report to say
18  whether or not it's safe or not, I mean, I
19  would like anybody who thinks fracking is
20  safe to drink some fracked water and drink
21  some of the water that's been coming out of
22  people's wells after fracking has happened.
23  You may have a lake with a hundred thousand
24  people living around it and nobody wants to
25  have fracking.  One person does it, and the
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 2  water gets polluted for everybody.  It's a
 3  cancer on our society.
 4  I think it's amazing that there is a
 5  group of nuns in Kentucky, and I can't
 6  remember the order now, but I saw this
 7  thing, the Sisters of Loretto, and the
 8  sisters have been there for, I believe, 165
 9  years on this property.  They have been
10  stewards of the property, and they have
11  lived off the land there.  They have been
12  doing a wonderful job of it.  They mind
13  their business and are not causing any
14  environmental degradation, and the fracking
15  companies have basically come along and said
16  we want to run a pipe through your property,
17  and the sisters said, we don't want to do
18  that.  So the company has basically said,
19  well, other people in your community are
20  amenable to this, so you can either play
21  along with us or we are just going to get --
22  you know, use what-you-ma-call-it, eminent
23  domain and get what we want anyway, so why
24  don't you just take some money and go away?
25  And so I think they have picked a battle
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 2  that might be more than they thought of, you
 3  know, going after some nuns.
 4  And I mean, this is -- it's pretty
 5  outrageous, isn't it, that this occupying
 6  force of energy companies who are basically
 7  the same thing as our subprime mortgage.
 8  It's the same people who are behind these
 9  companies.  This isn't about American energy
10  independence.  It's not about clean energy
11  for our country or anything.  It's all about
12  greed.
13  You know, my girlfriend was in the
14  hospital at Maimonides in Brooklyn recently,
15  and I looked out from the tenth floor.
16  There was a lobby there that in between
17  tests and all you can go just kind of look
18  out on the land there.  And there is not
19  one -- I looked, I could see Bayside, all
20  the way out to Rockaways.  You don't see one
21  solar power.  And Jersey is number two in
22  the country in solar, and New York is really
23  lagging behind.  And if we don't get our act
24  together, I think our bodies -- I am not a
25  science teacher, but I think our bodies are
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 2  83 percent water so basically we are just
 3  lugging around water, and if we don't
 4  protect our water, we are dead.  We are
 5  doomed.
 6  So it's up to you guys, and I thank you
 7  for being here, as we are telling what you
 8  we know about it and the science is showing,
 9  we are hoping that you understand that this
10  involves all of us, no matter what your
11  religion is, how much money you have, we all
12  need water; and without water, we are really
13  up the creek without a paddle.
14  So I hope that somehow common sense is
15  going to rule, and it's not going to be
16  money because money is going to ruin this
17  whole thing.  If we keep being greedy and
18  letting greed run the game, we are in
19  trouble.
20  I mean, the subprime mortgage caused a
21  lot of pain and a lot of grief, but once we
22  ruin our water supply, there is nothing
23  left.  Capiche?  Have a nice day.
24      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Judith Canepa followed
25  by Robert Alpern.
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 2      MS. CANEPA: I am Judith Canepa, and I
 3  am with the New York Climate Action Group
 4  and also again the Coalition Against the
 5  Rockaway Pipeline, and this is a federal
 6  project, this pipeline.  However, the State
 7  of New York has a part to play in it, and so
 8  when I think of the term "bridge fuel,"
 9  particularly for my group, I think of a gas
10  fuel line going under a bridge.  That's how
11  I see it as a bridge fuel.  It's a line
12  that's already been laid from Kings Plaza
13  Shopping Center all the way down to and
14  under the Marine Park Bridge.
15  The only other way I can see gas as a
16  bridge fuel is the image in my mind is you
17  build a bridge off of a cliff and you have
18  nothing to hold the bridge up and eventually
19  you run out of materials and the bridge
20  crumbles and we fall into the chasm of
21  runaway climate change, and this is fuel
22  that's being given preference in the energy
23  plan.  I find it very sad.
24  I see that Mr. Norris is with the
25  Department of Environmental Conservation,
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 2  and I think the word "conservation" is the
 3  key here.  If we talk about renewable
 4  energy, and we talk about the other ideas
 5  that we have, we still have to consider the
 6  unsexy but essential answer to our energy
 7  woes is to use less.  We can certainly do
 8  that, and we need the State to lead the way
 9  in using less.  One of the ways that we can
10  use less energy, and it's pretty
11  interesting, and I don't know if you have
12  heard about it, I know you heard about
13  fracking.  I know you heard about the -- I
14  know you heard all of these things.  So I
15  repeat them, but you have heard them.  One
16  of the interesting other ideas that maybe
17  you haven't heard about is called the
18  passive house.
19  You have?  Maybe you have.  The passive
20  house, it's an envelope around your house.
21  It cuts the energy needs in the wintertime
22  and the summer.  It insulates the house to
23  such a degree that in northern European
24  countries that are using passive house
25  technology they have barely turned on their
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 2  furnace.  All the heat coming out of the
 3  refrigerator, the heat -- the heat that's
 4  coming out of all the appliances, the heat
 5  that's coming out of the people and the
 6  dogs, really do heat the house because the
 7  heat doesn't escape.  It's just one idea.
 8  I think it's time for us all to be bold,
 9  to shed our titles and our official
10  designations and recognize that we are -- we
11  are being asked -- it's in our hands right
12  now, the future of life on Earth, and New
13  York State has a part to play.  New York
14  state is not China or this country it's --
15  but it's a leading state, and it's an
16  influential state, and we have a part to
17  play; and the part we have to play right now
18  is so exquisitely crucial.  I ask you to go
19  beyond what your duties and assignments are
20  and I recognize that we are fighting for
21  your lives here, all of our lives and your
22  children.  Thank you.
23      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
24  We have Robert Alpern to be followed by
25  Alex Beauchamp.
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 2      MR. ALPERN: I will try and be brief.  I
 3  have three questions, I have already raised
 4  them with Chairman Rhodes and Mr. Norris,
 5  but I do think that the answers to these
 6  questions help to frame the hearing.
 7  One of the questions is:  What is the
 8  significance that there is nothing about
 9  nuclear or fracking in Volume 1, which is
10  the plan itself?  I think if you can explain
11  that, it will go -- it will help to make
12  these more productive hearings.
13  A second question is, relates to the
14  forthcoming NYSERDA report on energy
15  efficiency and renewable resource
16  development, which is referred to in the
17  technical appendix.  More information about
18  that report and when it's going to be out,
19  why it really hasn't helped -- why it is not
20  out already would be, I think, important as
21  well since it goes to an important part of
22  the energy picture.
23  A third issue for me is making sure that
24  we have contact information for all members
25  of the New York State Energy Planning Board,
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 2  including the three that are appointed and
 3  are not heads of state agencies.  So in fact
 4  that we can dialogue with them and
 5  independently of the hearing process if
 6  that's necessary.
 7  I do want to put in a plug for
 8  reactivation of the New York State Water
 9  Resources Strategies.  Under legislation
10  that was passed in 1984, New York State
11  Energy -- New York State Water Resources
12  Planning Council was created with eight
13  agency heads and seven public members of
14  which I was one actually.  The Strategies,
15  in fact, were issued in 1988.  However, for
16  over a decade the council hasn't met for --
17  although there is a requirement for updates
18  every two years, those requirements have not
19  been honored.  Not only is this important
20  for the energy picture because of the tight
21  connection between energy and water as a
22  source, as an extraction element, as a
23  cooling element, as a disposal element,
24  there also is a -- tells us something about
25  the fate of statewide plans such as the
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 2  Energy Plan.  What's really needed is to
 3  apply the State Water Resources Strategies
 4  at the same time as we move forward with the
 5  State Energy Plan.  Thank you.
 6      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
 7  Alex Beauchamp followed by A. Jerry
 8  Kremer.
 9      MR. BEAUCHAMP: Thanks.  I am Alex
10  Beauchamp.  I am the Northeast -- literally
11  no one -- I am the Northeast Region Director
12  of Food and Water Watch.  We are a national
13  consumer organization based here in New
14  York.
15  So I want to start today by saying that
16  if Governor Cuomo's serious about investing
17  in climate change, he must ban fracking.
18  This energy plan calls for 80 percent
19  reduction.  Many people mentioned the
20  greenhouse gases by 2050.  That goal simply
21  isn't attainable if Governor Cuomo opens the
22  state to hydraulic fracturing.  So I urge
23  Governor Cuomo and his administration to
24  prove his commitment on climate change by
25  banning fracking across the state, and this
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 2  is important because the decision to allow
 3  fracking in New York would be a direct
 4  contradiction to any promise to lead the
 5  state on climate change.  Not only will
 6  allowing fracking in New York increase our
 7  dependence on dirty fossil fuels we must
 8  turn away from, but it will also greatly
 9  contribute to emissions that further warm
10  and disrupt the climate.
11  Carbon dioxide is emitted from burning
12  natural gas and contributes significantly to
13  greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide.
14  The carbon dioxide emitted from burning
15  natural gas contributes significantly to
16  climate change; but it's not just about
17  carbon dioxide, unfortunately.  Fracked
18  natural gas releases massive amounts of
19  methane into the atmosphere during the
20  extraction process and transport of the gas.
21  We know that methane is an extremely,
22  extremely potent greenhouse gas.  In fact,
23  33 more efficient at trapping heat than
24  carbon dioxide is over a hundred years and
25  in the short term it's even worse, a hundred
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 2  times more potent than carbon dioxide over
 3  20 years.  Increasing evidence including a
 4  study lead by researchers at the National
 5  Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
 6  indicates that methane emissions from
 7  fracking-related operations have routinely
 8  been underestimated by both industry and the
 9  Environmental Protection Agency.  Given the
10  magnitude of these emissions from these
11  studies it's clear that allowing fracking in
12  New York dashes any chance we have of
13  keeping greenhouse gases level below what
14  scientists say are necessary to avoid really
15  catastrophic consequences.
16  And the simple truth is that you can't
17  be -- Governor Cuomo can't be ahead on
18  climate change and move forward with
19  fracking.  You simply can't do both, and so
20  I know this plan says relatively little, but
21  not none, but relatively little about
22  whether we should open the state to
23  fracking.  It does, as others have
24  mentioned, though, relied heavily on fracked
25  gas from other states.
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 2  So I urge Governor Cuomo to correct this
 3  egregious flaw.  New Yorkers are already
 4  experiencing disastrous effects of climate
 5  change.  It's time to move aggressively away
 6  from fossil fuels towards a truly renewable
 7  energy future.  Instead this plan under
 8  consideration locks us into years of more
 9  fossil fuels consumption, and we are at a
10  crisis.  Switching out one fossil fuel for
11  another simply isn't enough any more.  It's
12  not enough to get it done in New York.  We
13  really shouldn't be spending another dime on
14  fossil fuels infrastructure.  Yet this plan
15  explicitly promotes the acceleration and
16  expansion of natural gas specifically for
17  Initiatives 6, 8 and 9.
18  Finally, I think someone else mentioned
19  this but, but following the draft document
20  we are talking about an energy plan
21  something of a misnomer.  There is a lot of
22  pages.  There is not, in fact, a lot of
23  planning.  The document relies heavily on
24  flawed energy forecasts, and I will just
25  give a couple of examples.  One is the
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 2  document's own data showed wind and solar
 3  production doubled from 1990 to 2012.  This
 4  far outpaces every other energy source,
 5  including natural gas.  Despite the plan
 6  predicts a dismal future for anemic growth.
 7  It actually slows to zero in 2020.  So using
 8  these kind of dubious forecasts to predict
 9  the future, the plan becomes something of a
10  self-fulfilling prophecy.  Instead of
11  passively relying on forecasts, Governor
12  Cuomo should lead a course toward a true
13  renewable future with aggressive targets
14  with development of renewable energy and a
15  ramping down our reliance on fossil fuels
16  that got us into this problem in the first
17  place.
18  And so I will close by urging Governor
19  Cuomo and NYSERDA to go back to the drawing
20  board.  I think this energy plan, we at the
21  Food and Water Watch feel it's just fatally
22  flawed.  The reliance on dirty and call for
23  expanded use of fracked gas from other
24  states make it a complete non-starter.
25  Governor Cuomo should instead be a true
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 2  leader on climate change by banning
 3  fracking, creating a visionary plan to lead
 4  New York away from fossil fuels and towards
 5  renewable energy.  I want to thank you guys
 6  for being here, and that's all I got.
 7      CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
 8  A.   Jerry Kremer followed by Reginald
 9    Bowman.
10        MR. KREMER: Good afternoon, Mr.
11    Chairman.  I am the chairman of the New York
12    Affordable Energy Alliance.  We have been in
13    existence now for ten years.  We have 150
14    members.  It was formed after the blackout.
15    I would say in addition to that we are
16    probably the more broader-based energy
17    policy group here in the state.  We hold
18    hearings and forums.  We are interested in
19    getting the right information out.
20    First of all, I want to commend this
21    panel and the staff for making this effort.
22    I sat in the state legislature for 23 years.
23    I wrote the original power plant siting law
24    back in the '70s.  I worked with the
25    legislature on the revisions to the current
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 2    one, which was clearly a step forward for a
 3    law that was badly in need of revision, and
 4    I congratulate the State and the panel on
 5    this energy plan in its earliest stages,
 6    which is what it is.
 7    I don't candidly think that New York
 8    State has the luxury of starting out with an
 9    energy plan that rules out every conceivable
10    form of energy that we can use other than
11    one or two.  I know there is so much
12    discussion today about solar and wind, and I
13    participated in a panel two years ago with
14    T. Boone Pickens, who put his hand on my
15    shoulder and said, "Son, the sun doesn't
16    shine often enough in New York and the wind
17    doesn't blow often enough for me to invest a
18    dollar here."
19    And it was a fascinating comment.  If I
20    was an investment banker in the city of
21    Chicago, and I was looking at the State of
22    New York where I was sitting on billions of
23    dollars in funds, I don't think I would want
24    to come here because the rhetoric throughout
25    the state is what people don't want.  I
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 2    think at this stage you don't have the
 3    luxury of ruling out anything; whether it's
 4    natural gas or whether it's nuclear or
 5    whether it's LNG.  I don't think it would be
 6    fair to the people of this state until we
 7    create a real bridge to the future, which we
 8    don't have right now.  There is no such
 9    thing.  Maybe 20 years from now there are
10    going to be many perfected processes for
11    delivering energy, but we just don't have
12    them now; and to cavalierly say, let's shut
13    this one down and take this out of your plan
14    I think is a leap forward.
15    On the issue of wind, I might point out
16    the chairman of ConEd today made a statement
17    that he has abandoned the wind project from
18    the ConEd perspective because, as he put it,
19    the cost exceeds the benefits.  Quote,
20    unquote.
21    I attended a hearing five years ago on
22    Long Island for the construction of a wind
23    farm facility off of Jones Beach, and a
24    thousand people showed up at the hearing to
25    protest visual pollution.  That project
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 2    never went forward.
 3    So the problem with this as Senator
 4    Maziarz from Western New York will tell you
 5    that a wind proposal to build a modest wind
 6    farm in his district attracted 800 people in
 7    opposition and only two people who spoke for
 8    it.  So there are a lot of pitfalls with
 9    trying to do creative things.
10    We still have a big energy demand going
11    on in New York State.  We thought by 2015 we
12    would reduce energy demand by 15 percent.
13    Instead the demand keeps growing by -- in
14    the case of this year 2.6 percent, and it's
15    going to keep going on.  After every heat
16    wave that also points out the fact that a
17    lot of our facilities are aged, where they
18    are talking about trying to get repowering
19    for a number of plants, costs are very, very
20    high.
21    We do need cleaner sources of energy.
22    We need anything that's going to improve our
23    infrastructure, and then one of the things
24    that this panel has to be mindful of is that
25    government regulations should not
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 2    necessarily interfere with new ideas, and we
 3    think that's a crucial thing.  If people
 4    come forward with new concepts and new
 5    ideas, they shouldn't face, not only the
 6    prospect of increased taxes on almost
 7    anything, but the fact that the government
 8    after saying come on in and spend the money
 9    passes regulations which are deterrents.
10    We do have the highest rates in the
11    nation, and the decision of PSC to spend
12    $800 million of ConEd and Rapad's money as
13    an alternative to Indian Point is just
14    another burden on the consumer.  If Indian
15    Point is going to be relicensed -- and I
16    don't doubt in my mind that the NRC will
17    eventually, after years of court battles and
18    everything else, license Indian Point based
19    on their conclusion a long time ago that
20    it's safe.
21    What we can learn about closing power
22    plants, the object lesson is the Shoreham
23    Power Plant.  The people on Long Island are
24    still paying every day for the closure of
25    the Shoreham Power Plant.  People want to
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 2    talk about clean air, and there is no
 3    question in my mind that nuclear is clean,
 4    but also we have to start focusing on the
 5    economic impact of shutting down plants:
 6    The job that are lost, the taxes that are --
 7    there is nobody to pay them, and in effect
 8    the deterioration of the community.
 9    And Indian Point, I think it speaks for
10    itself.  It's there.  It's clean.  And as
11    far as I am concerned, it meets all our
12    standards.
13    I congratulate the panel for listening,
14    and you are going to hear a lot around the
15    state.  I can only tell you one thing.  I am
16    amazed as an observer who has traveled
17    around this state that people who live along
18    the ten counties that border Pennsylvania
19    each day look over that border and see
20    people working, and see people living,
21    people surviving, people not dying.  So the
22    whole concept is -- by the way, you can't
23    relate fracking to everything being bad.
24    This concept of the Liberty Project out in
25    the ocean people say they don't want it
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 2    because it leads to fracking.  There is no
 3    real connect.  You can't keep saying no
 4    fracking and no other form of energy.  They
 5    are irrevocably linked.
 6    Thank you for your time.
 7        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
 8    Reginald Bowman followed by Martha
 9    Cameron.
10        MR. BOWMAN: Good afternoon.  My name is
11    Reginald Bowman, and I am glad to follow
12    this gentleman because some of his views are
13    surprisingly similar to my own because I
14    really believe that if you are going to talk
15    about the energy in our state, you have to
16    realize that while you are planning for the
17    future, we are dealing with the ongoing
18    demand for consistent energy 24 hours a day
19    and seven days a week.  And it is
20    unbelievably surprising that as many people
21    in this room, and I respect everyone's
22    intelligence, and, you know, reasons for
23    wanting to have changes, do not realize that
24    if you are going to make changes and make
25    plans, you have to be reasonable enough to
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 2    deal with the consistent delivery of energy
 3    services in our city.
 4    I am the president of the Citywide
 5    Council of Presidents, and I represent all
 6    of the families that live in public housing
 7    in the City of New York, and this is not the
 8    first time that I have testified before a
 9    panel, and I support the licensing of Indian
10    Point primarily because -- well, let's hear
11    it -- primarily because at this point the
12    alternatives that are being presented,
13    whether they are wind, solar, or whatever
14    alternatives, none of them are actually
15    being implemented in time enough to continue
16    to supply power for this region, and the
17    economic impact that this would have if we
18    are going to all of a sudden start shutting
19    things down and have nothing to replace them
20    would create, not only an unnecessary
21    economic shift, but it will create hardships
22    for a lot of people in a lot of different
23    industries.
24    I think that practical approach to all
25    of this in planning for the future is to not
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 2    take adversarial positions against each
 3    other and say that this is bad, this is
 4    worse, and let's shut this down and shut
 5    that down because it leads to nowhere, and
 6    the institutions that -- or the machinery of
 7    the plants that are running and will
 8    continue to run anyway.  It is important, I
 9    think, for us to understand that if we shut
10    these things down, the energy -- if you shut
11    down Indian Point, the energy that we depend
12    on this side of the state will create a
13    problem because we will have less energy.
14    We will have to pay more for it, and it will
15    have a trickling economic impact on everyone
16    who works and lives in this side of town
17    that depends on that energy coming in here.
18    So again, I understand your opposition
19    to the past.  I understand the necessity of
20    change, and I understand the necessity for
21    dealing with all of the global changes that
22    have happened in my lifetime; but I also
23    understand the fact that you got a
24    consistent need for energy in New York City
25    that is being supplied by the sources that
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 2    are supplying it now.
 3    To propose the future you have to be
 4    practical, and in proposing the future you
 5    can't just switch off the lights and wait to
 6    have something to replace it because New
 7    York is not going to stop running, and
 8    neither is the rest of the state.
 9    So my proposal is to relicense, to stop
10    spending so much money fighting each other.
11    Relicense the Indian Point, and then sit
12    down and reason together like people for the
13    future of all of us involved because all of
14    us are in the same boat, and right now the
15    debate and the money that's being spent
16    fighting each other is not really
17    accomplishing anything, and those of us that
18    need this energy and that are having to go
19    back to work or coming back into the
20    economy, we need to be able to have
21    affordable energy because we all rely on it
22    every day.  Everybody has got a cell phone.
23    Everybody has got all of these things that
24    we are relying on.
25    So let's, I think, be reasonable.  We
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 2    need to make sure that energy is consistent
 3    and sustained and then sit down and put
 4    together a plan so that we can create
 5    sustainable energy and keep what is working
 6    working so that those of us that are
 7    dependent on it can continue to use it.
 8    So I support relicensing Indian Point.
 9    I think it's important to keep that source
10    coming, so that in the years while everybody
11    is debating on what we are going to do for
12    the future, we will still have an affordable
13    source of energy for your community.  Thank
14    you.
15        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
16    And may I just pick up on a word that
17    you used, "cell phone."  All of those that
18    have them, let's shut off our phones.
19    Martha Cameron to be followed by Damon
20    Cabbagestalk.
21        MS. CAMERON: My name is Martha Cameron.
22    I am with Climate Action Brooklyn for Peace,
23    and also Coalition Against the Rockaway
24    Pipeline.  I didn't come here with typed up
25    notes, which is probably a bad thing.  I
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 2    have been listening to what everybody has
 3    been saying.  Obviously, from the
 4    organizations that I cited, you know where I
 5    stand on fracking, and you know where I
 6    stand on natural energy, and you know where
 7    I stand on renewable energy.  So I don't
 8    know that I need to really repeat all of
 9    that.
10    I was interested in the last two are
11    speakers and also the speaker from SHARE.
12    The point was made that we don't have enough
13    wind or solar power in this state to
14    interest T. Boone Pickens in investing here.
15    The fact of the matter is my electric bill
16    for the last year -- I just finished doing
17    my taxes -- was $281 for the entire year.
18    And most of that cost was the $17.95 that I
19    have to pay to ConEdison every month to keep
20    a meter in my cellar.  I have solar panels
21    on my roof, and I am one of four brownstones
22    in my neighborhood with solar panels.  We
23    could solarize this city.  And we could take
24    care of 40 percent of our peek electrical
25    need in the summer if we put up 500,000
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 2    solar panels on rooftops.  We should start
 3    with putting solar panels on all of our
 4    public institutions, on our public schools.
 5    This is a demand that we, as a group, are
 6    going to be placing on our new Mayor
 7    DeBlasio, but it is also a demand that we
 8    make of our government.
 9    Now I am deeply disturbed because as I
10    went out the door today my husband said to
11    me, oh, it seems that Energy Secretary Moniz
12    is putting pressure on Cuomo for fracking in
13    New York State.  Now it's very hard to fight
14    on so many levels.  We have Obama's
15    all-of-the-above plan, which is basically an
16    all-fossil-fuels-all-the-way plan.  Now we
17    are having to fight his energy secretary
18    interfering in New York State.  This is not
19    a good situation for us.
20    When everybody talks about how clean
21    nuclear power is, I think back a few decades
22    when I had four kids staying in my house who
23    were from Chernobyl.  They didn't think that
24    nuclear energy was so clean.  They were here
25    to get treatment.  People are dying still in
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 2    the Soviet Union, and they will be dying for
 3    years in Japan.  We should not be allowing
 4    the continuation of nuclear power plants in
 5    this country.  We need to shut down Indian
 6    Point now before 15 million people are
 7    nucleated or whatever the word is.  We need
 8    to start making the transition now.
 9    If we go with fracked gas, we are, first
10    of all, turning or state into an extractive
11    industry state.  This is a major economic
12    turn.  It will be very bad.  It would be
13    very good in the short run for the T. Boone
14    Pickens of this world.  It will be very bad
15    for the rest of us.  And after approximately
16    6 to 10 years there will be no more gas in
17    New York State because it is not the rich
18    source of fracked gas that Pennsylvania is.
19    There is a strip right along the border
20    there, the sweet spot, so-called.  We are
21    going to plow it out in no time at all and
22    in the process we are going to destroy the
23    thing that is infinitely more precious that
24    we have a whole lot less of on this planet.
25    We have less than three percent of the water
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 2    that's in this planet is fresh water and a
 3    great deal of it is concentrated in Ontario
 4    and in New York State.  And we are planning
 5    to destroy it.  Right now we can look at
 6    half the country that's in a terrible
 7    drought.  We have got 11 states that are in
 8    crisis, and we should recognize that water
 9    is the most essential element that we have.
10    We need arable soil.  We can't have arable
11    soil.  You can't grow food on soil that has
12    been exposed to ground water that's poisoned
13    with fracked fluids.
14    One of the things that disturbed me
15    about the opening statement you made was the
16    emphasis on market forces in this so-called
17    plan.  Energy must become a public good.  We
18    need to put it into the hands of the
19    government and take it away from the
20    privatized section -- sector.  It's that
21    that drives up the cost.  It's that that
22    makes for chaos in our energy plan.  It's
23    that that means that New York City residents
24    are paying extraordinarily high rates.
25    The other thing I would like to point
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 2    out is we are talking about a plan of going
 3    to total renewables by -- 80 percent
 4    renewables by 2050 and 50 percent renewables
 5    by 2030, and yet the IPCC, which is an
 6    extremely conservative international body,
 7    says we have 15 years before we face
 8    irreversible climate change.  Irreversible
 9    means it's over.  It's over.  I have nine
10    grandchildren.  My youngest grandchild will
11    be 15 years old in 15 years.  My oldest will
12    be 35.  I don't want that future for them.
13    I want them to have a future where there is
14    water, where there is food.
15    We can live without gas.  We can live
16    without oil.  We can live without coal, but
17    we cannot live without water and food, and
18    that's what this fight is about.
19    Edith Kantrowitz mentioned the issue of
20    just transition, and it's come up a couple
21    of times.  When we are talking about the
22    true plan for New York State, and this is
23    what I mean by making energy for public
24    good.  We need to take into account the
25    communities that are currently essentially
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 2    company towns for the power plants.  We need
 3    to take into consideration the 375 workers
 4    at Indian Point.  We need to pension them
 5    out at full pension even if they are not
 6    eligible yet.  Give them the money.  Shut
 7    down Indian Point, but transition them
 8    justly to new jobs.  We need their new jobs
 9    or pension.  If we rely totally on building
10    of the massive build-out of fracked gas that
11    we are doing right now, what we are doing is
12    creating path dependency.  We will be stuck
13    with that infrastructure for 50 years.  And
14    we haven't got 50 years.  I keep saying this
15    to you over and over.  We have 15 years.  We
16    need to take back 15 year period and put in
17    solar panels all over the place.  We need to
18    put in wind farms and not the LNG liberty
19    Port Ambrose thing that's planned out there
20    on Long Beach.  We need to stop building the
21    Constitution and the Rockaway and the
22    Spector Pipelines.  We need to stop opening
23    up compressor stations that are 500 feet
24    from people's houses.  We are poisoning the
25    people.  We are industrializing our rural
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 2    areas, and this is insane.  And this is not
 3    a plan that you have given us.  This is a
 4    prescription for death.  We need a change
 5    now.
 6        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you.
 7    Reverand Damon Cabbagestalk followed by
 8    Dr. Leonard Hatter.
 9        REVERAND CABBAGESTALK: Hello.  How are


10    you?  Mr. Norris, Mr. Rhodes, Judith Lee?
11    This is not my first time appearing before
12    you.  My name is Reverand Damon L.
13    Cabbagestalk, Junior.  I just want to say
14    briefly to you that this is not the only
15    section of Brooklyn, and there are many
16    individuals that are not here that probably
17    wish to be here to represent Brooklyn.  So
18    we need to go outside certain areas to reach
19    individuals as you can see the signs being
20    held up over there.  They are from some of
21    those areas that I am speaking about.  Let
22    me just say that I am a pastor of Joppa
23    Christian Ministries, and I am also a human
24    rights leader if I may say.
25    We are talking about energy, and we are
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 2    talking about people's lives.  Now we didn't
 3    get this far by just sitting around the
 4    table dealing with numbers and papers and
 5    ink and papers.  It was a struggle by the
 6    people's voice.  It was a struggle by a need
 7    of action, and I heard the President say
 8    that this is a year for action, I believe.
 9    So the question here today is, whatever you
10    have in front of you or whatever have been
11    presented to you to do the right thing must
12    be action.  Must be action.  But allow me to
13    say that there are children involved here.
14    Not only adults, but children of the
15    community.  Families throughout New York
16    City, they support -- they support -- you
17    may not see them here.  They support the
18    Indian Point, and you may have a list of
19    some of them there, too.  Okay?  What we are
20    dealing with is we are talking about this
21    post-Hurricane Sandy era.  I was out in Long
22    Island where we had no lights for over
23    16 days while those that at the top level
24    was getting the money and then all of a
25    sudden saying I am going to retire.  I am
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 2    going to retire.  And we are going to shut
 3    this down.  I was one of those who helped
 4    organize out there to get that to where it
 5    was, to look into what was going on out
 6    there.  Snow as it is here, no electricity.
 7    No -- just eating out of a can.  I
 8    understand because I have been part of that,
 9    but I want to say to you today that we are
10    also rate payers in this, and we need
11    affordable, affordable rate pay.  We need a
12    system that's going to work, and we need a
13    system that's going to be clean.  Okay.  We
14    need change, but we don't need the same
15    change that has been going on with the
16    bureaucracy as those that call themselves
17    the political leaders that have been chosen,
18    called throughout the democracy to help the
19    people of the land.  It just does not work
20    any more.  Look around.  You read the
21    papers, I am assuming, every day.  You watch
22    CNN.  You watch New York 1.  Look around
23    you.  It's all fallen.  Everything that we
24    have created is going to pieces on us.  Why?
25    Because we choose not to do the right thing.
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 2    You know what the right thing is.  You have
 3    the statistics.  You have different stories,
 4    different testimonies.  But the realities of
 5    the facts still remains:  What are you going
 6    to do about it?  What are you going to do
 7    about it?  This must ensure that it is safe
 8    and reliable and affordable energy for us.
 9    We strongly urge you to continue to operate
10    the Indian Point.
11    I need water.  You need water.  I heard
12    the gentleman say that our body is made up
13    of -- what do we do without it?  We all die.
14    God saw that it was time for us to get a
15    cleansing in the city so he sent some
16    showers today so we could move our cars and
17    get out of our houses and get back to work.
18    The reality of the fact is we are not in
19    control.  We need to really seriously sit
20    down and take a look at what we are dealing
21    with to move forward because it's not that
22    many years left for any of us on this earth.
23    So if we are going to do something, we need
24    to do it right, and we need to do it now.
25    And I want to thank you for hearing me out,
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 2    and let this not be the last time that you
 3    hear my voice because we need voices that
 4    are right today, not belittling sound, but
 5    that are right.  Thank you and God bless
 6    you.
 7        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
 8    Leonard Hatter followed by Jamie Mott.
 9        REVERAND HATTER: Good afternoon.  My
10    name is Reverand Leonard Hatter.  I am the
11    counselor of Courage to Change in the
12    Brownsville Community, also representing the
13    churches in our community, but I come here
14    today to talk about and be a part of the
15    opening of -- the remaining opening of the
16    Indian Point.  The relicensing the Indian
17    Point Energy Center is a great -- is a right
18    move for Brooklyn low income African and
19    Caribbean American families.  With asthma
20    great and is already at the crisis level
21    throughout the low income Brooklyn, we need
22    more clean energy.  We need more clean
23    energy like Indian Point, not fewer.  Asthma
24    is among the leading causes of
25    hospitalizations and missed school days for
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 2    African and Caribbean Americans' children in
 3    New York City; and if closed, Indian Point
 4    would be replaced with the same dirty power
 5    plants that currently put our children at
 6    risk from the beginning.  Despite the fact
 7    that our children and seniors are more at
 8    risk for asthma and that the air quality in
 9    New York City is already in violation of
10    federal standards, the voice of low income
11    Brooklyn has been silenced up until now.
12    Brooklyn religious community is united in
13    the belief that New York has energy; that
14    New York energy future must be clean and
15    free from greenhouse gas.
16    The crucial first step towards securing
17    the clean energy future is keeping Indian
18    Point open and opportunities and operational
19    for many years to come.  Religious
20    institutions throughout Brooklyn recognize
21    that Indian Point provides the clean, safe
22    and affordable energy in New York City.  New
23    York City needs in order to curb clean
24    pollution and reduce asthma rates throughout
25    our neighborhoods; we also understand that


Min-U-Script® Ellen Grauer Court Reporting Co. LLC (19) Pages 73 - 76







HEARING OF THE DRAFT STATE ENERGY PLAN 
February 19, 2014


Page 77


 1        HEARING
 2    nuclear power is a safe and proven way to
 3    produce greenhouse gas.
 4    I just want to say -- stop there and
 5    say, I have three children that suffer from
 6    asthma.  Do you know what it is to have a
 7    child trying to breathe, to gasp for air on
 8    a summer afternoon?  Do you know what it is
 9    to take them to the park on a summer
10    afternoon and they can barely breathe?  Do
11    you know what it is to have the school call
12    you and saying, we are on our way to the
13    hospital with your child because she could
14    barely breathe?  We need Indian Point to
15    stay open.  Our seniors with heart
16    problems -- we need Indian Point to stay
17    open because we need clean air.
18    I am in Canarsie.  If you are anywhere
19    around Canarsie and you see in the schools
20    the asthma rate has risen to no end because
21    our children, and the sad thing that to see
22    is many of our children in our school system
23    and in our communities suffering with asthma
24    and gasping from asthma today.
25    So I welcome Indian Point to stay open
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 2    so that our children and our families
 3    together can grow and breathe fresh air,
 4    good energy air.  I thank you.
 5        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
 6    Jamie Mott followed by Tom Ryan.
 7        MS. MOTT: I apologize, I don't have
 8    notes with me.  I am kind of just speaking
 9    off the cuff, so I want just to address
10    certain points that people have made.
11    I have a chronic illness.  I don't know
12    how I got it or where it came from.  Doctors
13    don't really know, but it pretty much
14    devastated my life.  I used to really like
15    who I was when I was healthy, and I can
16    honestly say that I struggle to find new
17    ways to like myself currently.  It's just
18    very challenging, and I don't wish this on
19    anybody, and I am very concerned about what
20    will happen to our water supply if we go
21    forward with fracking in New York, and if we
22    open up a whole industry centered around,
23    you know, fracked gas.
24    You know, people make the point a lot
25    that, you know, all of this fracking creates
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 2    jobs, but I also wanted to address what
 3    happens when you get a disability is that
 4    you lose your ability to work, so the jobs
 5    that you have you can't do any more.  So I
 6    wanted to address, I think, people with
 7    disabilities I think they have like -- I
 8    don't know the fact exactly -- but it's I
 9    think a 20 to 30 percent employment rate.
10    So unemployment does get created around loss
11    of health.
12    So what's the other point that I wanted
13    to -- well, just something that's shocking
14    to me is I am from California, and I used to
15    teach about global warming, and there was
16    this computer prediction of what would
17    happen if, you know, sea levels rose.  And
18    one example was, you know, a computer
19    simulation of what could happen to
20    Manhattan.  So it was shocking when I moved
21    here and that I saw that computer simulation
22    in real life.  So you know, global warming
23    is very real, and it's happening here, and I
24    guess I really hope that New York will be a
25    leader in this, in creating new renewable
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 2    sources instead of going down the same path
 3    of using non-renewable energy.
 4    I also wanted to comment about how when
 5    there is the political will and the economic
 6    will to create new solutions, they are
 7    definitely possible.  My brother works for
 8    Tesla Motors, and Elon Musk is a big leader
 9    in renewable technology, and right now they
10    are creating new battery technology that
11    will be able to store solar power for a lot
12    longer, so that way it's something that
13    people can use in their own home a lot
14    easier.
15    So it's like when the will is there,
16    these things really are possible.  So I
17    beseech you all to, you know, really think;
18    and if you are having trouble making
19    decisions about what to do, go to
20    Pennsylvania yourself and see what is
21    happening like on ground -- on the ground
22    level because I feel like that will really
23    help you to make these really difficult
24    decisions for the future of New York and
25    humankind.  Thank you.
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 2        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
 3    Tom Ryan, to be followed by Marge Schab.
 4        MR. RYAN: Good afternoon.  My name is
 5    Tom Ryan.  I would like to make a couple of
 6    apologies.  I am not a professional orator.
 7    That's why I have written my comments down
 8    so save everybody from stammering and
 9    stuttering.  I am also a native-born
10    Brooklynite, so please excuse my gruff
11    voice.  I am not used to a microphone.
12    Once again, my name is Tom Ryan.  I
13    serve as the assistant business manager for
14    Boilermakers Local 5, which covers New York
15    State and Long Island throughout the
16    mid-Hudson region and to the North Country.
17    On behalf of my union brothers and sisters
18    throughout New York City, Long Island,
19    upstate, and most important, Brooklyn, I
20    thank you for holding today's hearings.
21    To keep the lights on and revitalize our
22    economy, it is critical that we take a
23    realistic and balanced approach to
24    safeguarding our energy future.  This will
25    require that New York continues to support
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 2    clean, safe and reliable power resources
 3    such as nuclear, natural gas and hydropower
 4    sources within the State of New York.  The
 5    continued development of alternative energy
 6    resources such as wind, solar, geothermal,
 7    et cetera, may also be important to
 8    complement New York's baseload power
 9    infrastructure.  Additionally, utilizing the
10    latest technology to turn fossil fuel
11    resources into clean-burning baseload energy
12    resources is critical to creating jobs,
13    especially with the new natural gas combined
14    cycle heat recovery steam generators in
15    addition to the selected catalytic reducers
16    and also the air cooling condensers which
17    save our natural resources of water.  Very
18    important for New York.  As well as the
19    clean coal sequestration, which I won't get
20    into now.  That's something else we are
21    definitely in favor of and would rather see
22    our money go to that than wasting it on wind
23    and solar research.
24    The plan has identified energy
25    efficiencies as the priority resource for


Page 83


 1        HEARING
 2    meeting its multiple objectives.  While
 3    energy conservation and efficiency must be a
 4    vital component of any State Energy Plan,
 5    you can't substitute that efficiency and
 6    conservation at the expense of baseload
 7    power.  No reasonable person is against
 8    efficiency, but it won't be enough.
 9    There are many solid issues within this
10    report.  In particular, I recognize the
11    board for supporting the use of existing
12    right-of-ways for transmission improvements.
13    This is vital to helping bring cheap energy
14    from upstate and Western New York, such as
15    Buffalo and North Country, Oswego, et
16    cetera, to where it is needed in downstate
17    New York.  This policy should be
18    strengthened by prioritizing current and
19    future electrical system upgrades to prefer
20    instate power production over importing
21    energy from out-of-state and, more
22    importantly, out-of-country sources, which I
23    will touch upon later.  This would address
24    the energy needs of te entire state by
25    allowing lower cost resources to serve
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 2    higher needs of the state.  The New York
 3    Independent System Operators reports more
 4    than 80 percent of the state's high-voltage
 5    transmission lines went into service before
 6    1980.  Forty percent of the existing
 7    transmission system will likely need to be
 8    replaced over the next 30 years at an
 9    estimated cost of more than 25 billion.
10    And I believe that comes directly from
11    the Energy -- Draft Energy Plan.
12    As my union brothers and sisters well
13    know, instate, instate power generation and
14    targeted upgrades are critical to the very
15    future of Central New York, Western New York
16    and the North Country.
17    I would also recognize the plan for
18    supporting additional research and
19    development in renewable energy.  However,
20    once again, I must voice concern with regard
21    to categorizing out-of-state, and most
22    importantly, out-of-country fuel sources as
23    renewable and eligible to be receive New
24    York ratepayer dollars as part the Renewable
25    Portfolio Standard program.  Sending our


Min-U-Script® Ellen Grauer Court Reporting Co. LLC (21) Pages 81 - 84







HEARING OF THE DRAFT STATE ENERGY PLAN 
February 19, 2014


Page 85


 1        HEARING
 2    greenbacks beyond our borders will export
 3    our energy jobs.  At the Boilermakers, we
 4    are ready to partner with the Administration
 5    to create jobs in New York State by New
 6    Yorkers for New Yorkers.  We firmly believe
 7    that New York should be powered in New York
 8    by New Yorkers.
 9    Between unprecedented weather events
10    such as Superstorm Sandy and of course
11    Hurricane Irene, and new records for
12    electric demands in both summer and winter
13    seasons confirms that New York needs more
14    energy, not less.
15    To maintain and enhance our quality of
16    life, New York needs to keep expanding its
17    use of clean baseload sources, particularly
18    instate nuclear and hydro resources.
19    Indian Point supplies enough power for
20    nearly one in every ten homes in our state,
21    and is in the midst of applying for license
22    renewal.
23    As I mentioned before, I am a native
24    born -- Livingston Hospital, I just dated
25    myself but -- and bred and born Brooklynite.
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 2    About ten years ago moved up to the Yorktown
 3    Heights within the so-called ten-mile kill
 4    zone.  It's a boy-meet-girl story, otherwise
 5    we would still be in Brooklyn.  Anyway, my
 6    four kids, my wife, myself all live within
 7    that ten-mile kill zone, and more
 8    importantly I have worked there numerous
 9    times, been in vapor containment, et cetera,
10    I am still here to live about it -- talk
11    about it.  So something to take into
12    consideration.
13    Last and most importantly, we oppose the
14    Champlain Hudson Power Express project and
15    urge the State to reconsider its support for
16    this ill-advised extension cord that will
17    run from Canada to Queens.  Attached to our
18    testimony is an open letter signed by the
19    Steamfitters, as well as other unions, IBW
20    and Utility Labor.
21    We are actually also calling for the
22    President of the United States and Congress
23    to reject this unnecessary and ill-advised
24    transmission line, and I thank you for your
25    time.  I see my time is up.
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 2        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
 3    Marge Schab -- I hope I have that
 4    right -- and then Susan Filgueras.
 5        MS. SCHAB: I plan to do more extensive
 6    comments since I have another conference in
 7    a couple months, but I felt very important
 8    to come here and hear all sides.  I have to
 9    say there are two things in my mind.  There
10    has been a misuse of the word "entitlement."
11    And entitlements of food stamps,
12    entitlements of housing, entitlements of
13    education, scholarships, of Social Security,
14    Medicare, of veteran benefits, they are all
15    good entitlements because they sew us all
16    together and make us strong; and then I
17    realized there is another entitlement that
18    we feel we are entitled, all of us, me
19    included, of endless use of energy in our
20    lives without really making the necessary
21    changes that we must.
22    We just had a union representative
23    talking about the aging infrastructure.  We
24    have to face the fact that we have to do
25    things differently, and we have to face the
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 2    fact that we cannot afford to make New York
 3    State a large manufacturing industrial zone.
 4    As someone said here, we need the soil.  We
 5    need the water, and we need the air.  The
 6    Weather Channel just posted a whole study of
 7    the affection of how gas development has
 8    ruined air in the Eagle Ford Shale.
 9    Air moves, and we cannot know about the
10    people of (inaudible).  I have met them and
11    there are times that they cannot breathe.
12    There are children that live in that area.
13    We eat the food from that area.  And the
14    compressor stations exude all kinds of
15    chemicals that hurt the population, and I
16    was also shown the metering stations, and as
17    you look underneath all the pipes were
18    corrosive pipes, and it's only eight years
19    old, and this means methane leaks and God
20    knows what else because the gas has to pass
21    through it.  And there is a whole process of
22    making -- of bringing natural gas or shale
23    gas, which really negatively affects us all.
24    Asthma, later we are going to see more,
25    you know, severe chronic illnesses; and all
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 2    these illnesses and negativity and
 3    industrialization of our state, the costs of
 4    that will fall on us, the taxpayers.
 5    So I made a resolution, a resolution in
 6    the new year, and it's hard to keep, but we
 7    must all keep it.  We have to really look at
 8    reality of what faces us.  We can't look and
 9    accommodate Pennsylvania by building the
10    infrastructure and the pipelines for the
11    Constitution Pipeline.  We can't build the
12    LNG plant at Port Ambrose.  We have to
13    honestly look because we can do it if we
14    want to.  We have done it before.  We will
15    do it for our future.  Let us face the
16    future honestly and do its -- work on the
17    renewables; work on retrofitting, work on
18    insulation; work on changes in the way we
19    get around.  Because the important thing is
20    to give life to the next generation.
21    So I ask you to turn away from all
22    fossil fuels.  Even the EIA says the only
23    fuel source or energy source that meets the
24    requirements that we cannot suffer from
25    global change is renewable.  So let's be
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 2    honest with ourselves and not make natural
 3    gas an infrastructure that devastates and
 4    industrializes our state, threatens our
 5    food, threatens our air, threatens our
 6    water; and let's face the real realities,
 7    and New York State actually could be a
 8    forefront for everybody else to model if we
 9    did.  So thank you.
10        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
11    Susan Filgueras followed by Lois
12    Pinetree and other last speaker's name we
13    have.
14        MS. FILGUERAS: Thank you.  I would like
15    to say thank you first for coming here.  I
16    can't work with microphones.  It's in my
17    face.  If you don't -- it's like.  Okay.
18    I want to say thank you.  I have been
19    attending quite a few of these over the last
20    three years.  I am from a county called
21    Rockland.  Rockland is not on your public
22    site.  You are not having a public hearing
23    there.  Rockland isn't.  Westchester isn't.
24    Orange isn't.  Putnam isn't.  Duchess isn't.
25    Greene County isn't.  Those are the counties
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 2    that host a good part of New York State's
 3    energy infrastructure.  We have the
 4    pipelines.  They are putting a brand new
 5    44-inch high pressure gas line above my head
 6    where I live, the SPECTRA Aim Project 3.
 7    The Champlain Hudson Power Express, an
 8    extension cord from Hydro Quebec as a gift
 9    to all of the workers and New York State
10    residents:  No jobs, no money, no savings,
11    and eminent domain, and the person who will
12    have to press the eminent domain is Governor
13    Cuomo.
14    On CHPE's front of their front page of
15    Champlain Hudson Power Express website he
16    says, he quoted as saying the governor,
17    "It's a great thing for Canada."  I don't
18    live in Canada.  I live here.  I am
19    confused.
20    You are the energy planning folks.  Who
21    is the New York State Energy Highway?  Do
22    the plans work together?  Are they -- do
23    they meld?  Do we understand what one group
24    is going for with the other group?  It's
25    frightening because I have been working the
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 2    New York State Energy Highway, and I
 3    apologize, I don't read The Federal Registry
 4    with my morning coffee.  The Times, I can
 5    even get to the Wall Street Journal.  The
 6    Federal Registry defeats me.  I didn't know
 7    this was here.  The rest of the world
 8    doesn't know it's here unless you are
 9    following it, unless you are trying to find
10    it.
11    I am inviting you to Rockland County to
12    come to us and talk to us, the people who
13    host that energy infrastructure.  We had two
14    power plants:  The Bowline, the Lovett.  We
15    have four high-pressure, high-volume
16    interstate natural gas pipes that cross
17    Rockland.  The wires are even bigger.  And
18    the insult is the Champlain Hudson Power
19    Express, which will use eminent domain to
20    take our land to build an extension cord for
21    Canada.
22    The insult, the final piece of it -- and
23    I want you to know this -- is that the town
24    of Stony Point is a revolutionary war town.
25    We fought one of the most decisive
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 2    engagements of the revolution.  We won.  We
 3    chased the British out.  It was decisive in
 4    an area where battles were not fought
 5    decisively.  They were fought to a
 6    standstill.  The Champlain Hudson Power
 7    Express will desecrate the Stony Point
 8    battlefield where soldiers were buried where
 9    they stood, where they stood, where they
10    died.  And the plan is, I don't know what
11    other word to use that's not insightive
12    (sic).  They plan to disinter the Waldron
13    Revolutionary War and War of 1812 Cemetery,
14    which was part of the original from Patton,
15    from McCain.  These are men and women who
16    fought in the American Revolution for our
17    right to stand here, your right to be chair
18    of the Energy Planning Board.  These are the
19    men and women who stood up and said, we
20    believe.  And now we are going to dig them
21    up.
22    So I am asking.  I am confused.  I don't
23    have enough time.  I had to take the day
24    off.  I come from West Point.  I couldn't
25    find parking, God bless you guys.  And my
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 2    question is:  Which is it?  Is it an energy
 3    plan?  Is it an energy highway?
 4    Added to this, this is the
 5    infrastructure that is going to Rockland
 6    County at 7.2 miles:  A 1,000 megawatt high-
 7    tension electric line which will dig up our
 8    cemeteries; a 44-inch high-pressure natural
 9    gas line from in front of the Lovett Power
10    Plant site across the Hudson River, which
11    will come above ground at Indian Point very
12    near the Spence Rye fuel -- I have to say
13    that slowly -- I am sorry.
14    Added to that, shipping will cross over
15    four high-pressure natural gas lines.  The
16    44-inch, which is brand new, a 24, 22 and I
17    think a 28 that have been there for at least
18    the last 30 years.  And the West Point
19    Power -- the West Point Power Express, West
20    Point Power Partners -- excuse me -- I am
21    sorry -- will cross the 44-inch high-
22    pressure gas line on Indian Point land.  I
23    am confused.
24    Please come to Stony Point.  Allow the
25    people who host all of this infrastructure
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 2    to be heard by your group:  Rockland,
 3    Orange, Westchester, Putnam and Duchess.  We
 4    need to be heard, too.  But I thank you for
 5    coming, and I thank you for allowing me to
 6    speak, and I think I can give you these.
 7    This is a picture.  And I also submitted --
 8    oh, and I forgot the last thing, we are
 9    going to desalinate the Hudson River.  We
10    are less than a mile from Indian Point, so
11    we'll have a desalination plant along with
12    the thousand megawatts, along with the
13    44-inch high pressure gas main.  So I am
14    submitting the testimony I gave to the
15    Public Service Commission on the United
16    Water Desal Plant, and we met with Richard
17    Kaufman at the first part of January of this
18    year.  I have given you that as well.
19    Please come to Rockland County and hear
20    us.  We really need a lot of help because we
21    are confused.  Two plants.  Who do we talk
22    to?  Thank you.
23        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
24    Lois Pinetree?
25        MS. PINETREE: Thank you for having a
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 2    mike for short people.  My name is Lois
 3    Pinetree, and I am a New York City public
 4    schoolteacher, and I am a member of the
 5    CARP, the Coalition Against the Rockaway
 6    Pipeline.  And the reason that I joined this
 7    group is that part of New York State's
 8    energy plan apparently and the federal
 9    energy plan is to run a pipeline and install
10    a gas meter in station literally in the
11    middle of my community garden at Floyd
12    Bennett Field, which is in the Gateway
13    National Park.
14    Now, a community garden may sound like
15    small potatoes compared to the other issues
16    that have been discussed here, but I want
17    you to know that we are one of the largest
18    and oldest community gardens in the nation,
19    and we have between 300 and 500 gardeners.
20    I, personally, have been there gardening
21    since 1997, and I am one of the younger
22    members.  And the idea that my national park
23    that I had spent so many hours beautifying
24    and building the soil, from nothing -- it
25    was sand -- building, bringing compost in
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 2    and building that soil, and the idea that it
 3    is going to be polluted by a gas metering
 4    station, which we know is going to leak
 5    sooner or later; and that very good
 6    possibility that the birds and the wildlife
 7    are going to be driven away.  Perhaps you
 8    have heard of the canary in the mines.
 9    Birds do not like -- miners take canaries
10    into the mines because the birds will die if
11    there is a gas leak, and they know that if
12    that happens, they have to get out of the
13    mine.  Birds do not like methane, and there
14    is every good chance that this whole area
15    which -- and Jamaica Bay Wildlife Preserve
16    is not so far away, and we have the
17    grasslands, which is a big bird sanctuary.
18    These birds are just going to leave in the
19    presence of an industrial facility that does
20    not belong in a national park.  The national
21    parks were created to be a haven from
22    industry, not to be the place that industry
23    comes.
24    But I think I digress because there were
25    so many issues that were brought up today
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 2    like Indian Point, and I am sorry a lot of
 3    those people are not here now, but Indian
 4    Point is being apparently, to my great
 5    surprise, is being touted as safe, as clean.
 6    Nothing could be further from the truth.
 7    And also that it creates jobs and that we
 8    are used to having it here.  We are used to
 9    having Indian Point.  It's there already so
10    we might as well keep it.  I think the
11    people of Chernobyl and the people of
12    Fukushima were also used to having their
13    nuclear power plants, and someone mentioned
14    that, you know, I live nearby and there is
15    no problem and I walk by and I don't see any
16    problem, but by the time we see a problem,
17    it's going to be way too late.
18    New York City is I believe 25 miles from
19    Indian Point, and there is no possible
20    evacuation plan for New York City that could
21    possibly work given the population, the
22    amount of the population, and I probably am
23    dating myself.  No one has mentioned
24    Three-Mile Island, to me in rather recent
25    memory, Pennsylvania.  It's not 3,000 miles
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 2    away in Europe and Asia.  Pennsylvania had a
 3    very serious nuclear problem, and it really
 4    showed that nuclear power is untenable.
 5    It's not a clean source.  It's not reliable,
 6    and it is way overkill.
 7    And thank you to Martha Cameron who has
 8    installed solar panels on her roof.  And
 9    what we have -- I think there is so much of
10    what we are used to, what we are used to, we
11    are just used to gas.  You know, and we see
12    it and we use it and it's blue and it's
13    friendly, and they have such nice
14    advertising on TV and the children are all
15    running out of the buses.  You know, it's
16    all homey, and but the people in Germany,
17    for example, are used to -- and I actually
18    saw this on a film -- they are used to
19    30-foot high or approximately look to me
20    30-feet high solar panels that run for
21    40 miles along their highway and are
22    powering I believe it was 50 percent of the
23    energy needs of -- it might have been
24    Frankfurt.  It was one of the major German
25    cities.  You know, Germany is way ahead of
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 2    us.
 3    And in terms of jobs, I am all for
 4    American jobs.  I think there is nothing
 5    more important, and if you have, as Rachel
 6    Maddow pointed out in her little
 7    advertisement, when you have wind turbines,
 8    that you can't outsource those jobs.  It's
 9    Americans that are going to be running those
10    and are going to be fixing them.  So there
11    is so much that we have.  Maybe we have to
12    use our imagination a little bit to see what
13    can be done rather than what is.  And what
14    is leading us down a road of destruction,
15    and Sandy was just the beginning of, you
16    know, seeing the bottom fourth of our island
17    of Manhattan and most of Rockaway being
18    destroyed.
19    So I call upon the panel and upon the
20    governor to ban fracking in New York State
21    because we can live without gas, but we
22    cannot live without clean water and clean
23    soil.  Thank you very much.
24        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
25    That completes our list of speakers that
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 2    have given us their name.
 3        MR. DOLL: Can I say one thing?  They
 4    had a special on Nova about five years ago
 5    and off the coast of Denmark there is an
 6    island about 700 people living on it back in
 7    the '80s they decided they were going to do
 8    better, and they cut out the waste and put
 9    in solar and wind power; and now 25 years
10    later they sold energy back to the mainland.
11    They did it in Denmark, and did it
12    (inaudible).
13    When I was a little kid they said, some
14    day solar power is going to be viable.  Now
15    it's 50 years later they are saying, some
16    day, but we are not ready yet.  We are not
17    ready yet.  We are ready.
18        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you.
19        MR. DOLL: Thank you.
20        CHAIRMAN RHODES: I'm sorry.  Your name
21    again?
22        MR. DOLL: Dave Doll.
23        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Nicole Minichiello.  I
24    saw you just walk in, but you are our next
25    speaker.  Do you need a minute?  Are you
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 2    ready?  We are ready for you.
 3        MS. MINICHIELLO: Mr. Rhodes,
 4    Mr. Norris.  I appreciate you holding this
 5    hearing.  I, however, wish it were at an
 6    hour that would be more accommodating to
 7    most people in New York.  I think it's
 8    strange that a public hearing would be held
 9    in the middle of the day.
10    And I also would like to say that I --
11    the pushing of some of environmental groups
12    has enabled these hearings to occur and has
13    pushed back the timeframe for a month from
14    what I understand on the -- so that the
15    series can be place, and I do appreciate
16    that you have listened to the public and
17    taken that time.
18    I think that, as this gentleman was
19    saying, and this was -- I am sure many
20    people who have been here today have said,
21    there is a problem.  We in the world, we in
22    this state, we in the country, in the city,
23    we need action.  And we need leadership on
24    alternative ways of doing business.  This is
25    not the way.  It's not the way to go forward
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 2    with gas.  It's not the way to go forward
 3    with oil, and it's not the way to do the
 4    same old thing in new ways, perhaps bigger,
 5    better and faster ways, but new ways like
 6    fracking.  It's not the way.
 7    We need you as our representatives,
 8    environmental conservation and the
 9    leadership of New York State to take action
10    and really lead us to a different place.  We
11    need solar.  We need wind energy.  And we
12    really do need conservation.  We need to
13    shut off the lights in buildings when no one
14    is there.  We need to stop wasting as much
15    as we do.  I buy a package of something, and
16    it comes under 15 layers of plastic.  That
17    takes energy to get that there.  That takes
18    oil to produce the plastic.  That takes tons
19    of other natural resources.  And as a state
20    we shouldn't accept that because we can do
21    much better.
22    It's ridiculous that you have to accept
23    as a consumer so much waste as part of your
24    daily life, and we just pretend when we put
25    it into our trash can that it goes off to
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 1        HEARING
 2    nowhere; that it disappears.
 3    In New York we know that's talked about,
 4    though.  We have had arguments through the
 5    Bloomberg years over waste and where to ship
 6    New York's waste.  And we have fought with
 7    different states about who is going to be
 8    the lucky, lucky recipient of all of that we
 9    produce, all the garbage we produce.  We as
10    a state I am sure have more area for
11    landfills, but landfills aren't a pretty
12    place.  They are not a pretty site, and what
13    I am saying in terms of energy is all of the
14    things that we waste, the garbage pickups,
15    and all that goes along with that also
16    produces waste.
17    So as the Department of Environmental
18    Conservation and the Energy Planning Board,
19    that is something that should be part of all
20    of this:  Solar panels, wind energy and
21    really a focus on conservation.
22    I am not sure -- I am not sure whether
23    there is -- how much sort of these hearings
24    are being given, but I hope they are being
25    given as much weight as they deserve.
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 2    Although, just like I said from the
 3    beginning, based on the time, it seems odd
 4    that these guys would come out at this time
 5    when many people are working and not
 6    available.  I do again appreciate you being
 7    here at all, and I do hope that we are able,
 8    as the public, to show you that we are
 9    excited about things like solar, like wind
10    energy, which I keep saying incorrectly,
11    wind energy and like conservation.
12    Fracking, I just want to back to that
13    for a minute is something we absolutely
14    don't want, don't need.  Don't want these
15    dirty pipelines coming into New York City,
16    and it's scary that they are being built
17    under our noses without the oversight that
18    should be there.  There is not the oversight
19    that should be there.  And there is so many
20    different groups that are responsible, but
21    everyone at the end of the day it's kind of
22    like how the Obamacare rolled out, the
23    website rolled out.  Everybody is
24    responsible for a little piece so at the end
25    of the day no one is responsible for
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 2    anything.
 3    Mr. Norris, as part the Department of
 4    Environmental Conservation I would expect
 5    that you and your team lead us on this.
 6    Please lead us on this.  We need protection
 7    for the public and for our environment.
 8    I appreciate again you listening today,
 9    and I really hope you take this home with
10    you and all the things that the folks here
11    have said.  Thank you.
12        CHAIRMAN RHODES: Thank you very much.
13    There are no further speakers, so but we
14    will adjourn.  We will take a break, and if
15    more speakers come in, we will resume.  But
16    I am going to go ahead and make some of my
17    adjournment comments in a minute because
18    some of you may leave.
19    First of all, thanks from all of us on
20    the board to our host, Brooklyn College.
21    Thanks from all of us on the board to the
22    commentators.  You have given us much to
23    think about, and it's important to the
24    process and important to the finalization of
25    the report.
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 2    So thank you, and we will take the
 3    comments on the report with great
 4    seriousness and expect to do that as we
 5    continue towards the final.
 6    Please also remember, and this is for
 7    you and for anybody who will listen to you,
 8    that we welcome written comments as well
 9    submitted on our website up until
10    April 30th, www.energyplan.NY.gov.
11    And with that point we will pause and
12    resume for our next meeting.  Thank you all.
13    (Recess taken.)
14        CHAIRMAN RHODES: We are adjourning this
15    session of the public comment.  So thank you
16    all.
17    (Time noted:  6:01 p.m.)
18    
19    
20    
21    
22    
23    
24    
25    
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 1                         HEARING
  


 2            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Good afternoon, and
  


 3        welcome.  My name is John Rhodes, and I am
  


 4        the Chair of the State Energy Planning
  


 5        Board, the president and CEO of Planning
  


 6        State Energy Research and Development
  


 7        Authority.
  


 8            I would like to welcome you here to the
  


 9        Gold Room at Brooklyn College.  We thank
  


10        Brooklyn College for their hospitality in
  


11        hosting us and ask you to recall that all of
  


12        us are their guests, and thereby we ask that
  


13        you exercise decorum, and one of those rules
  


14        is that no signs on poles.  There may be
  


15        others, but that's the one I am aware of.
  


16            I would also look, I would like now
  


17        introduce to you the other representatives
  


18        of the planning board joining me today.
  


19        Judy Lee, executive Deputy of the Public
  


20        Service Commission, and Melvin Norris,
  


21        Director of the Office of Environmental
  


22        Justice At the Department of Environmental
  


23        Conservation.
  


24            This is a hearing to accept public
  


25        comments on the 2014 draft, which was
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 2        approved by the State Energy Planning Board
  


 3        on January 7, 2014, and made available on
  


 4        the Energy Plan website, energyplan.NY.gov.
  


 5            The plan was issued in accordance with
  


 6        Article 6 of the energy law.  Public notice
  


 7        of the issuance of the plan and the notice
  


 8        of this public hearing were published in the
  


 9        State Register on January 29th.
  


10            The draft plan consists of two volumes.
  


11        The first volume provides 15 key initiatives
  


12        to advance the State's energy future.  The
  


13        second volume addresses energy uses, its
  


14        sources and impact and provides detailed
  


15        background that was used to develop the
  


16        overarching vision and initiatives in the
  


17        first volume.
  


18            This, the State Energy Plan is the
  


19        result of serious, thoughtful work which
  


20        envisions an energy system that is clean,
  


21        flexible, affordable, resilient, reliable.
  


22        The initiative to achieve that mission focus
  


23        on five areas:  Improving energy
  


24        affordability, unleashing the power of
  


25        private sector finance, providing a more
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 2        resilient and flexible power grid, giving
  


 3        customers more control over their energy use
  


 4        and choices, aligning energy innovation with
  


 5        market demand.  The plan outlines to the
  


 6        achieve those initiatives, long-term policy
  


 7        goals, near-term action items and meaningful
  


 8        metrics.
  


 9            This is one of six public hearing
  


10        sessions that are planned to receive public
  


11        comments.  Future sessions are scheduled in
  


12        Manhattan, Long Island, Buffalo and
  


13        Syracuse.  Written comments on the draft
  


14        plan will also be accepted through April 30,
  


15        and information on submitting those written
  


16        comments can be found on the Energy Plan
  


17        website.  If you decide to submit written
  


18        comments, please do so as soon as possible
  


19        so that they can be considered as carefully
  


20        as possible.  All public comments, whether
  


21        oral or written, will be considered by the
  


22        Energy Planning Board as it works for
  


23        additions for the final plan.  All comments
  


24        will count equally regardless of how they
  


25        were received.  The planning board has
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 2        targeted issuance of the final plan of
  


 3        spring of 2014.
  


 4            The process today is simple.  Those who
  


 5        want to comment at this hearing have been
  


 6        asked to sign in upon arriving.  Your name
  


 7        will be called one at a time for you to
  


 8        speak.
  


 9            When your name is called, please come to
  


10        the podium to provide your statement, and I
  


11        will also call the name of the person who is
  


12        the following speaker so that we can move
  


13        smoothly.  We have a court reporter here
  


14        today to provide a transcript to the
  


15        Planning Board of everything that is said
  


16        today.  It is very important that there only
  


17        be one speaker at a time so that the
  


18        reporter can clear -- can hear clearly.  The
  


19        speaker should address their comments in the
  


20        direction of the microphone and please make
  


21        an effort to speak clearly and slowly.
  


22            It is also very important that those in
  


23        attendance be courteous to the speaker so
  


24        that his or her comments can be transcribed
  


25        accurately by the court reporter.  If you
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 2        provide a statement and have a written
  


 3        version with you, it would be helpful if you
  


 4        could provide that to us, either today or
  


 5        following the hearing, so we can provide
  


 6        those to the court reporter to assist in
  


 7        providing the transcript.
  


 8            All speakers are asked to focus on the
  


 9        things that pertain to the Draft Energy Plan
  


10        only.  Your comments should be as succinct
  


11        as possible so we can hear from as many of
  


12        you as possible.  We have set a five-minute
  


13        deadline for that purpose, but of course
  


14        after everyone has had a chance to address
  


15        the board, repeat speakers may be afforded
  


16        another five minutes should there be any
  


17        time at the end of the hearing.
  


18            Formal presentations such as PowerPoint
  


19        are not being allowed today.  Again, we want
  


20        to hear from as many of you as possible.  As
  


21        this is a statement hearing, the Planning
  


22        Board is not entertaining questions.  This
  


23        is an opportunity for us to hear feedback
  


24        from you on the draft planning.  Those who
  


25        want to comment but do not want to speak
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 2        publicly or do not get a chance to do so,
  


 3        again, can submit written comments via our
  


 4        website and again, that is www.energyplan.
  


 5        NY.gov.
  


 6            With that, I want to thank you all for
  


 7        coming today, and if there are any questions
  


 8        about the process, we can take those at this
  


 9        time.  Seeing none, I will call our first
  


10        speaker, Eric Legeer, to be followed by
  


11        Aubrey Lethbridge.
  


12            MR. LEGEER:  Good afternoon, everyone.
  


13        My name is Eric John Legeer.  I am the
  


14        project coordinator here at Brooklyn College
  


15        for NYPIRG, the New York Public Interest
  


16        Group, New York's largest, most effective
  


17        environmental consumer advocacy group.
  


18            It invokes a feeling of nostalgia for me
  


19        to be here because my first action as an
  


20        activist as I started was in 2007 helping to
  


21        implement and shape New York State's Energy
  


22        Plan under Spitzer.  We were supporting a
  


23        platform of 15 by 15.  15 percent energy
  


24        reduction by 2015.  Here we are in 2014.  I
  


25        am glad to be here.







9


  


 1                         HEARING
  


 2            Now, New York is my adopted city.  I am
  


 3        from Canandaigua, New York, what I like to
  


 4        call the crown jewel of the Finger Lakes,
  


 5        and that will be most of the basis and theme
  


 6        of my comments here today.
  


 7            I commend, I commend the DEC for taking
  


 8        action on meeting that 80 percent by 2050
  


 9        and covering CO2 emissions by 2050 that the
  


10        IPCC, Nassau and countless other groups have
  


11        enforced, but I do not want it to be a
  


12        leeway into natural gas.  I see what's going
  


13        on.  There is a rotten smell in the air that
  


14        natural gas is going to get a go, and we are
  


15        going to have to establish an infrastructure
  


16        to justify fracking in New York State.
  


17            Once again, I am from the Finger Lakes.
  


18        It makes me cry and it rips my soul apart to
  


19        think that even maybe one well can be
  


20        drilled around where my mother and my
  


21        brothers and my sisters, my family still
  


22        live.
  


23            The economy there is largely based off
  


24        of tourism.  Canandaigua Lake at one point
  


25        was second-most expensive lake to live have
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 2        on next to Lake Tahoe in the nation.
  


 3        Countless famous wealthy people have places
  


 4        there.  They just won't go for it.
  


 5            So I am begging you on the DEC, please
  


 6        implement wind and solar like our program
  


 7        the Solar Jobs Initiative, the $1.6 billion
  


 8        in tax cuts for manufacturers, for retailers
  


 9        and distributors.  Beautiful.  Let's
  


10        implement that and get clean, renewable
  


11        energy now.  We have the solutions.  No
  


12        fracking in New York State.  No LNG plants.
  


13        No LNG pipelines.  Keep big gas and oil out
  


14        of New York State, out of my first home.
  


15        Keep the pipelines out of my new home.  I am
  


16        begging of you, don't give a go to natural
  


17        gas or fracking.  It is not the answer
  


18        bridge fuel that they say it's cracked up to
  


19        be.  Thank you very much for your time and
  


20        consideration, and have a wonderful day.
  


21            MR. RHODES:  Thank you, Eric.  Next up
  


22        is Aubrey Lethbridge followed by David
  


23        Alicea.
  


24            MR. LETHBRIDGE:  Good afternoon.  Thank
  


25        you for this opportunity to make comments on
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 2        the 2014 Draft Energy Plan.
  


 3            I am Aubrey Lethbridge.  I am the
  


 4        project coordinator for NYPIRG at the
  


 5        College of Staten Island.  Students at the
  


 6        College of Staten Island are especially
  


 7        concerned with this issue because a large --
  


 8        I will be focusing my comments on how the
  


 9        plan addresses nuclear power.
  


10            The students at the College of Staten
  


11        Island are especially concerned with this
  


12        issue because a large part of Staten Island
  


13        lies within 50 miles of the Indian Point
  


14        nuclear reactors in Westchester County.
  


15            While we applaud Governor Cuomo for his
  


16        steadfast opposition to the relicensing of
  


17        these aging and dangerous facilities and
  


18        commend PSC and NYSERDA for their efforts to
  


19        ensure that New Yorkers will have a reliable
  


20        source of replacement power when the Indian
  


21        Point reactors are retired.
  


22            However, the risks of New York's
  


23        reliance on nuclear power are given short
  


24        shrift in the Draft State Energy Plan.  The
  


25        six commercial power reactors in New York
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 2        currently represent 14 percent of New York's
  


 3        power generation capacity, but a whopping
  


 4        29 percent of our electricity generation.
  


 5        This dependence on nuclear power to meet our
  


 6        electricity needs is troubling on many
  


 7        levels, and the plan does little to correct
  


 8        it.  In fact, there is very little
  


 9        discussion at all of natural energy in the
  


10        plan, which is also troubling, considering
  


11        its dominance in New York and the enormous
  


12        health, environmental and financial risks
  


13        posed by nuclear power.
  


14            The plan acknowledges there are many
  


15        potential environmental health risks from
  


16        nuclear power including:  Radioactive air
  


17        emissions from routine operations; potential
  


18        accidental releases of radiation, including
  


19        from earthquakes, accidents, and terrorist
  


20        attacks; leaks of radioactive water, which
  


21        can contaminate drinking water and food
  


22        supplies; transportation of nuclear fuel by
  


23        rail and truck; and onsite storage of high-
  


24        level radioactive waste.
  


25            The plan also acknowledges specific
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 2        vulnerabilities with the Indian Point
  


 3        nuclear reactors, including that Indian
  


 4        Point Unit 3 has the highest risk of a core
  


 5        meltdown from an earthquake of all the
  


 6        reactors in the United States because it was
  


 7        built on top of an active fault line.  The
  


 8        evacuation plan for Indian Point is also
  


 9        inadequate in the event of a serious
  


10        accident.  More than 17 million people live
  


11        within 50 miles of the plant in the
  


12        evacuation zone.
  


13            However, the plan fails to acknowledge
  


14        the increasing unreliability of State's
  


15        aging nuclear reactors or the possibility of
  


16        early nuclear retirements, planned or
  


17        otherwise, in upstate New York.  This is a
  


18        major oversight in the plan.  Most of New
  


19        York's reactors were built in the late 1960s
  


20        and early 1970s, and have been operating
  


21        well past their expected life span; the
  


22        three Oswego reactors used the same
  


23        technology as the reactors that melted down
  


24        at the Fukushima Daiichi plant in 2011.
  


25            Various financial analysts have







14


  


 1                         HEARING
  


 2        predicted that some of the upstate reactors
  


 3        are at risk of early retirement due to
  


 4        economic losses.
  


 5            The State should be planning for the
  


 6        eventual closure of all nuclear plants, with
  


 7        a particular focus on these potential early
  


 8        retirements.  If planned for properly, these
  


 9        retirements would create an opportunity for
  


10        massive renewable energy development in the
  


11        state.
  


12            With regard to Indian Point, the plan
  


13        discusses the current relicensing proceeding
  


14        for Indian Point Unit 2, whose license
  


15        expired in 2013, and Unit 3, whose license
  


16        will expire in 2015.  The State of New York
  


17        is currently petitioning the Nuclear
  


18        Regulatory Commission to deny Entergy's
  


19        petition to renew the operating permits for
  


20        each of these plants.
  


21            However, the plan envisions replacing
  


22        Indian Point's roughly 2,000 megawatts of
  


23        power with natural gas.  This plan should
  


24        instead lay out a strategy for replacing
  


25        Indian Point's energy through a combination
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 2        of transmission upgrades, energy efficiency
  


 3        and renewable energy.  A 2012 report by
  


 4        Synapse Energy shows that we can fully and
  


 5        cost-effectively replace Indian Point's
  


 6        power with equal investments in energy
  


 7        efficiency and renewable power sources
  


 8        alone, with no impact to the reliability of
  


 9        the region's energy supply.
  


10            We need to commit to advancing safe and
  


11        clean energy solutions in New York.  Nuclear
  


12        power is dangerous, expensive and
  


13        unreliable.  We can replace the power, but
  


14        we can't replace the lives.  New York should
  


15        take this opportunity to move in a safer and
  


16        more sustainable direction.
  


17            Thank you again for this opportunity.
  


18            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


19            MR. ALICEA:  Good afternoon.  My name is
  


20        David Alicea, and I am with the Sierra Club
  


21        here in New York City and on Long Island;
  


22        and I am here representing thousands of
  


23        Sierra Club members and supporters in this
  


24        area, many of whom are actually going to be
  


25        here today and be speaking later on.  And I
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 2        want to say thank you, first of all, of the
  


 3        work your agency and staff put into this
  


 4        plan.  It's a tremendous amount of work and
  


 5        thank you for coming down and listening to
  


 6        all of us today.
  


 7            In late 2012, at the devastation of
  


 8        Superstorm Sandy, Governor Cuomo made it
  


 9        clear:  Climate change is real, and we have
  


10        to act.  Since then the governor has made a
  


11        strong commitment to solar New York's sun,
  


12        and this plan's goal of reducing greenhouse
  


13        gas emissions 80 percent by 2050 shows that
  


14        the governor understands climate change is a
  


15        serious issue.
  


16            Unfortunately, this plan has more
  


17        questions than answers.  It comes to how
  


18        gets to the 2050 goal.  The real plan must
  


19        include enforceable interim steps to reach
  


20        80 percent reduction by 2050 and must reject
  


21        any further investments in fossil fuels and
  


22        prioritize.
  


23            New Yorkers have said time and time
  


24        again we can't frack and burn our way to a
  


25        clean energy economy.  While the governor's
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 2        commitment to solar is an encouraging start,
  


 3        this plan should ramp up renewable energy
  


 4        and commit to the goal of 50 percent by
  


 5        2025, and pledge to continue our energy
  


 6        efficiency program.
  


 7            It also needs to do more than just pay
  


 8        lip service to some of the best
  


 9        opportunities that we have to build a new
  


10        clean energy economy.  Right now off the
  


11        coast of New York City and Long Island there
  


12        are two major offshore wind proposals.  We
  


13        need the State and Governor Cuomo to
  


14        prioritize energy development and make sure
  


15        the projects are moving this year.  Not only
  


16        has it helped us meet our goals to reduce
  


17        emissions, but it will create jobs and score
  


18        some needed investments across New York.
  


19            New York has a manufacturing base, the
  


20        educated work force and the port
  


21        infrastructure to become home to the
  


22        American offshore wind industry.  This
  


23        energy plan should be jumping at the
  


24        opportunity and help make New York a real
  


25        clean energy leader.







18


  


 1                         HEARING
  


 2            This plan must also make sure we move
  


 3        you away from further investments in gas
  


 4        infrastructure and protect our families and
  


 5        water from fracking.  Further spending on
  


 6        natural gas infrastructure will lock in the
  


 7        reliance for fossil fuels for decades,
  


 8        increase demand for fracking in our state,
  


 9        and help fund the devastating gas extraction
  


10        occurring in states nearby.  Instead of
  


11        wasting millions of dollars and fossil
  


12        fuels, we can use those resources to invest
  


13        in clean renewable, energy like wind and
  


14        solar.
  


15            The Sierra Club is asking, let's turn,
  


16        not burn our way to a clean future.  While
  


17        we are encouraged by the goal of 80 percent
  


18        by 2050, the action on climate change cannot
  


19        wait until then.  Superstorm Sandy showed us
  


20        our communities are at risk now.  Will the
  


21        Long Island state beaches and Coney Island
  


22        boardwalks still be there for our children?
  


23        Will families that have spent generations on
  


24        Staten Island or Rockaways be forced to
  


25        move?  This is what's at stake.  We need
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 2        Governor Cuomo and this energy plan to make
  


 3        sure we are protecting our communities.  We
  


 4        need a strong commitment out of renewable
  


 5        energy and a real plan that explains how we
  


 6        can get there.
  


 7            Thank you once again for your time.  I
  


 8        hope you take my statements and those of our
  


 9        friends and allies that will be speaking
  


10        today and use those to revisit this energy
  


11        plan and help make New York a real leader.
  


12            MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


13            Marian Ronan to be followed by Frank
  


14        Fraley.
  


15            DR. RONAN:  I am Dr. Marian Ronan, and I
  


16        am active in the climate action circle of
  


17        the Grail movement, which is an
  


18        international women's movement with a large
  


19        group here in New York City, and my comments
  


20        are going to address particularly the place
  


21        of fracking with the energy plan.
  


22            As The New York Times reported on
  


23        February the 13th, a new study in the
  


24        Journal of Science disputes the claim of the
  


25        natural gas industry that natural gas as a
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 2        quote/unquote "bridge fuel" is good for the
  


 3        climate.
  


 4            Natural gas actually contributes to
  


 5        global warming when you take into account
  


 6        the large amounts of methane, a greenhouse
  


 7        gas 30 times more potent than carbon
  


 8        dioxide, that escapes into the atmosphere
  


 9        during the fracking process.  This is in
  


10        addition to the fact that a large amount of
  


11        carbon dioxide is expelled into the
  


12        atmosphere by other aspects of fracking such
  


13        as the massive trucking of the liquified
  


14        natural gas and water, not to mention the
  


15        overuse and pollution of our ground water.
  


16            The solution to the leakage of methane
  


17        into the atmosphere that is contributing so
  


18        seriously to climate change we are told is
  


19        more regulation and inspection of fracking
  


20        sites.  But as the people of Charleston,
  


21        West Virginia discovered after a chemical
  


22        spill poisoned their water last month, there
  


23        hardly is regulation and inspection any
  


24        more.  Washington gridlock and partisanship
  


25        has depleted the number of E.P.A.
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 2        inspectors, and the resistance to raising
  


 3        taxes makes it incredible that New York
  


 4        State will inspect fracking sites
  


 5        sufficiently to prevent methane leakage.
  


 6        Let's not wait until we are flooded out by
  


 7        sea level rise and extreme storms to stop
  


 8        the natural gas industry from poisoning our
  


 9        atmosphere.  I urge you to eliminate
  


10        fracking from the New York Energy Plan.
  


11        Thank you.
  


12            MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


13            Frank Fraley to be followed by Ieva
  


14        Zadina.
  


15            MR. FRALEY:  Good afternoon.  My name is
  


16        Frank Fraley, and I am the president of
  


17        SHARE.  SHARE is a non-profit -- group of
  


18        non-profit organizations committed to
  


19        ensuring the continued supply of reliable,
  


20        clean and affordable electricity for all New
  


21        Yorkers.  For too long, high electricity
  


22        prices have placed an undue economic burden
  


23        on New York's families, businesses, and
  


24        businesses.  While poor air quality has led
  


25        to high asthma rates which place our most
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 2        vulnerable at risk.
  


 3            Right now we are just getting our
  


 4        economy back onto its feet, and the economy
  


 5        is beginning to strengthen.  However,
  


 6        community residents, small businesses,
  


 7        working men and women from communities
  


 8        across the region are still struggling.
  


 9            Recognizing the precarious state of our
  


10        economy, now is not the time to shutter a
  


11        source of clean, safe, affordable power in
  


12        this region.  And the source of power that
  


13        contributes 25 to 35 percent of downstate's
  


14        power, contributing power to this very
  


15        microphone, to the lights in this very room
  


16        at this college.
  


17            Furthermore, the Indian Point Energy
  


18        Center greatly reduces the amount of
  


19        pollution emitted into the atmosphere.
  


20        Unlike all other power plants in the
  


21        downstate region, Indian Point does not
  


22        release asthma-causing pollutants or
  


23        greenhouse gasses into the atmosphere.  This
  


24        is of great benefit to our air quality as
  


25        nearly all counties served by Indian Point
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 2        are consistently designated as non-
  


 3        attainment areas by the U.S. Environmental
  


 4        Protection Agency.  Clearly, we need more
  


 5        energy facilities like Indian Point, not
  


 6        fewer.
  


 7            For these reasons, SHARE and its member
  


 8        organizations firmly support the continued
  


 9        operation of the clean, safe and secure
  


10        Indian Point Energy Center, and we urge New
  


11        York State to ensure its continued operation
  


12        as part of the State's energy plan.  Thank
  


13        you.
  


14            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


15        Iena Zadina to be followed by Ling Tsou.
  


16            MS. ZADINA:  Hello.  My name is Iena
  


17        Zadina.  I am a retired Methodist minister,
  


18        and I also belong to the Grail Movement like
  


19        my friend Marian, and to the Coalition
  


20        Against the Rockaway Pipeline.
  


21            I am glad that I just followed the
  


22        previous speaker because he kept emphasizing
  


23        the word "clean," and I also was an English
  


24        teacher, so I think about words a lot and
  


25        what does "clean" really mean?  I do not
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 2        think that it means simply less methane or
  


 3        less CO2 or less toxins of any kind.
  


 4        Rather, we do know from our own practical
  


 5        experience that clean means.  It means clean
  


 6        water, and you know what that feels like.
  


 7        It means clean air without toxins and just
  


 8        warm enough to keep our Earth's atmosphere
  


 9        livable but not warming it too much.  And we
  


10        know what clean soil means when it supports
  


11        life of many, many different living things.
  


12            We also know about clean politics, which
  


13        is when governments and the public support
  


14        welfare of all people for many generations.
  


15        I am not so sure how clean money can be.  It
  


16        can be perhaps.  A lot of times it needs
  


17        laundering, but it is pretty practical a lot
  


18        of times.
  


19            What really is clean is the sun and the
  


20        wind and other sources of energy such as
  


21        tidal waves and so forth.  So in the report
  


22        I am very surprised and disappointed that
  


23        the report by Mark Jacobson and his
  


24        colleagues at Stanford was not even
  


25        mentioned as I looked through it.  That, of
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 2        course, you know I think very well proposed
  


 3        a very good plan where we could have all
  


 4        renewable energy in New York State by 2030,
  


 5        and I am sure that there are many
  


 6        difficulties that would need to be
  


 7        surmounted to do it, but I do believe that
  


 8        New Yorkers and Americans with all of their
  


 9        practical abilities could do it.
  


10            You know, I was born right into the
  


11        middle of World War II, and I am so aware of
  


12        what America achieved when it galvanized
  


13        itself for World War II.  What it did was
  


14        just like, you know, miraculous.  We can do
  


15        it again and even for a greater cause than
  


16        to win a war.
  


17            So when Jacobson's report is not even
  


18        mentioned, I wonder how serious New York
  


19        State is about climate change.  And of
  


20        course the word has not been mentioned much
  


21        in recent years, but the other day even
  


22        Secretary of State Kerry passionately talked
  


23        about climate change in Indonesia, who
  


24        pollutes only slightly less than we do,
  


25        apparently; and so I am hoping the time has
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 2        come when climate change and the survival of
  


 3        the planet will be taken seriously, and when
  


 4        it does, so should Jacobson's report and
  


 5        many other scientists who have supported it.
  


 6            And I just -- one more thing, New York
  


 7        State is so rich in water.  Water, there is
  


 8        I think really nothing -- there is no more
  


 9        precious resource that we have.  Even now
  


10        Canada -- Canada has been exporting water to
  


11        the dry parts of the world for a long time.
  


12        New York State, I don't know if it does now,
  


13        but it will have to probably.  Let us keep
  


14        our water clean, and I just hope you will
  


15        keep that image in mind.  Save our water.
  


16        We cannot live without it.  One day it will
  


17        be more precious than gold.
  


18            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


19        Ling Tsou followed by David Doll.
  


20            MS. TSOU:  I'm Ling Tsou from United for
  


21        Action.
  


22            While the Draft Energy Plan reaffirms
  


23        New York State's commitment to 80 percent
  


24        greenhouse gas reductions by 2015, with an
  


25        interim goal of 50 percent carbon-intensity
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 2        reductions by 2030, this plan does not lay
  


 3        out in details how we are going to achieve
  


 4        these goals.  Moreover, the plan only
  


 5        commits to measuring the reduction of one
  


 6        form of greenhouse gas, carbon dioxide,
  


 7        before 2030 while totally ignores the
  


 8        devastating impact of methane, which is the
  


 9        primary component of fracked natural gas.
  


10        Methane is a much more potent greenhouse gas
  


11        than carbon dioxide and lethal on climate
  


12        change.  The plan should specify a schedule
  


13        for the reduction of all forms of greenhouse
  


14        gas emissions with measurable benchmarks at
  


15        regular intervals.
  


16            The plan does not provide any analysis
  


17        for the mix of energy sources that will help
  


18        New York State meet the greenhouse gas
  


19        reduction goal and makes no commitment to
  


20        what percentage of New York State's energy
  


21        will come from renewables.  New York State
  


22        should set a clear target of meeting
  


23        100 percent of the state's power needs only
  


24        from renewables such as solar, wind,
  


25        geothermal by 2050 or before.  This plan
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 2        should identify what facilities and grid
  


 3        improvement are needed to achieve the goal
  


 4        of power New York State all by renewables.
  


 5        The technology for renewables is available.
  


 6        We just need the political will to follow
  


 7        through.
  


 8            The plan incorrectly describes natural
  


 9        gas as a clean energy source.  The primary
  


10        method of extracting natural gas nowadays is
  


11        by hydraulic fracturing or fracking, which
  


12        is a hazardous process that contaminates our
  


13        water, pollutes our air, poses grave danger
  


14        to people's health and contributes greatly
  


15        to climate change.  The plan clearly
  


16        indicates natural gas as a major part of New
  


17        York State's energy mix.  The plan's
  


18        forecast of natural gas production figures
  


19        seems to imply that fracking will take place
  


20        in New York State.  The plan also endorses
  


21        the increased build-out of natural gas
  


22        pipelines and storage infrastructure to
  


23        facilitate bringing in fracked natural gas
  


24        from outside of New York State.  Considering
  


25        the negative impact of fracked natural gas
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 2        on our health, economy, environment and
  


 3        climate, New York State must back away from
  


 4        its reliance on natural gas.  New York State
  


 5        must stop further investments in natural gas
  


 6        and liquified natural gas infrastructure
  


 7        which will only shackle us to unsustainable
  


 8        for fossil fuels for decades to come.  In
  


 9        particular, I urge Governor Cuomo to veto
  


10        the LNG Port Ambrose project off Jones Beach
  


11        near the entrance to the New York Harbor.
  


12        The construction and operation of LNG Port
  


13        Ambrose facility will further aggravate the
  


14        greenhouse gas emission and smog in the New
  


15        York air while contributing greatly to
  


16        climate change and exacerbate extreme
  


17        weather conditions.  The building of LNG
  


18        Port Ambrose project will increase our
  


19        reliance on fossil fuels and adversely
  


20        impact our investment in renewable energy.
  


21        New York State needs to commit to invest in
  


22        renewables which with recent cost declines,
  


23        wind and solar power are the lowest cost new
  


24        energy sources and beat fracking natural
  


25        gas.
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 2            The plan discusses the possible shutdown
  


 3        of the Indian Point nuclear reactors, and
  


 4        the projection of replacing it with
  


 5        increased natural gas powered electricity
  


 6        generation.  The replacement of the Indian
  


 7        Point nuclear reactors with natural gas
  


 8        power plant is a totally bad idea, and does
  


 9        not meet New York State's climate goals.
  


10        New York State must plan for the
  


11        decommissioning of all of its nuclear power
  


12        plants and abandon any plans to increase
  


13        energy generating capacity from nuclear
  


14        sources not only because of possible
  


15        catastrophic risks to human and
  


16        environmental health, a la Fukushima in
  


17        Japan, but nuclear power plants are
  


18        economically too expensive to build,
  


19        maintain and operate.  Converting nuclear
  


20        and aging and highly polluting coal and oil
  


21        power plants to natural gas power plants is
  


22        not the solution since methane's lifecycle
  


23        greenhouse gas emissions will only
  


24        exacerbate climate change and do nothing to
  


25        reduce New York State's carbon footprint.
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 2        New York state must seize this opportunity
  


 3        to invest in massive renewable energy
  


 4        development in our state.
  


 5            The plan promotes alternative fuel
  


 6        vehicles and commends the New York Clean
  


 7        Fleets Initiative which provides public
  


 8        money to help purchase vehicles that run on
  


 9        compressed or liquified natural gas.
  


10        However, science has shown that natural gas
  


11        is actually worse for the climate due to
  


12        methane leaks in the supply chain.  The plan
  


13        should implement specific targets to advance
  


14        electric vehicles and hydrogen fuel-cell
  


15        technology.  The electricity should be
  


16        generated from renewable energy sources.
  


17            In addition to increase its commitment
  


18        to solar, the plan must commit to invest in
  


19        renewable wind power both on shore and
  


20        offshore in New York State.  Specifically,
  


21        this year, New York State can purchase
  


22        offshore wind power to power Long Island
  


23        from a project under development east of
  


24        Montauk Point and move forward with a
  


25        project proposed by the New York Power







32


  


 1                         HEARING
  


 2        Authority in the New York Wind Energy Area
  


 3        off the Rockaways.
  


 4            The release of this draft plan offers us
  


 5        the perfect opportunity for New York State
  


 6        to move beyond our reliance on fossil fuels
  


 7        of the past, including natural gas and
  


 8        nuclear power to a bold vision and plan for
  


 9        a carbon free and nuclear free future
  


10        powered 100 percent by renewable energy
  


11        sources.  We cannot wait any longer in
  


12        scaling up massive investment in renewable
  


13        energy.  The retirement of dirty and
  


14        dangerous fossil fuel energy sources
  


15        including natural gas and nuclear will see a
  


16        need for particular attention to a host of
  


17        transition issues related to social and
  


18        economic justice.  With proper planning and
  


19        attention to just transition issues, these
  


20        social and economic impacts can be decreased
  


21        and addressed.  The plan does not mention
  


22        that's issues, and they must be included.
  


23        Thank you.
  


24            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you.
  


25            MS. KANTROWITZ:  I am here with United
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 2        for Action and New York City for Clear Water
  


 3        and the Coalition Against the Rockaway
  


 4        Pipeline, but I am here speaking also just
  


 5        as myself.
  


 6            I was a student here at Brooklyn College
  


 7        40 years ago, so this is nostalgic for me
  


 8        also, and I know that we all want to keep
  


 9        Brooklyn and New York City safe and clean
  


10        and healthy and supplied with energy.  So I
  


11        thank you for the opportunity to speak here.
  


12        And I am glad that we are trying to look at
  


13        an energy plan that will make a positive
  


14        energy future for us; but this New York
  


15        State Energy Plan, this draft, is not a
  


16        blueprint for positive energy future for New
  


17        York.  In fact, it's a recipe for
  


18        environmental devastation, serious public
  


19        health problems and runaway climate change
  


20        because it's basically envisioning a future
  


21        built on natural gas, and that's what you
  


22        get if you continue to use natural gas and
  


23        other fossil fuels.  We need to be
  


24        transitioning completely to emission-free
  


25        and non-toxic renewable energy like solar
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 2        power, wind power, and small scale hydro-
  


 3        electric, and we need to do it now.  Not
  


 4        even in ten years.  Not even in five years.
  


 5        We need to do it yesterday, and this plan
  


 6        just doesn't do it.  It's too late for an
  


 7        all-of-the-above approach because all around
  


 8        us we see the planet warming, the glaciers
  


 9        melting, the sea levels rising and the
  


10        droughts and the storms becoming ever more
  


11        severe.
  


12            This plan describes natural gas as a
  


13        clean energy source.  Nothing could be
  


14        further from the truth.  We have seen
  


15        repeatedly and tragically how natural gas
  


16        extractions through fracking contaminates
  


17        water, pollutes the air and makes people
  


18        sick; but because much of this plan is
  


19        written in support of what is misleadingly
  


20        called clean energy, programs could easily
  


21        be directed towards expanding the use of
  


22        fracked gas and the infrastructure that goes
  


23        along with it.  Because when we are
  


24        concerned about fracking, we are not just
  


25        talking about drilling.  We are also talking
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 2        about pipelines, LNG storage facilities, the
  


 3        LNG Port Ambrose terminal, all of these
  


 4        surround us with toxins.  All of these make
  


 5        climate change worse, and it's painfully
  


 6        obvious just how biased this plan is in
  


 7        favor of natural gas.  The giveaway is that
  


 8        the plan assumes that the moratorium on high
  


 9        volume horizontal hydrofracking will be
  


10        lifted in New York State, and then it
  


11        predicted natural gas production in New York
  


12        State will triple by 2030.  It predicted
  


13        growth in renewables will drop to zero after
  


14        2020, and that's despite the document's own
  


15        data showing the power generation from wind
  


16        and solar more than doubled in New York
  


17        State between 1990 and 2012.
  


18            But instead of simply taking it as given
  


19        that natural gas will become our primary
  


20        energy source, the real energy plan should
  


21        be taking a major role in shaping our future
  


22        and making sure that it's a future built on
  


23        renewables so that we New Yorkers can have a
  


24        future.  That's where our priorities should
  


25        be.  The priorities should not be one of
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 2        enabling the oil and gas companies to
  


 3        continue increasing their profits while our
  


 4        health, our climate, our landscape, and our
  


 5        food should go to hell in a hand basket.
  


 6            In fact, this plan is not even really a
  


 7        plan because it doesn't outline clearly
  


 8        where we need to be and then tell us how to
  


 9        get there.  It can better be described as a
  


10        collection of predictions, predictions which
  


11        will become a self-fulfilling prophecy in
  


12        the absence of any serious attempt to set a
  


13        course which will be in New York State's
  


14        true best interest.
  


15            As just an example, this plan only
  


16        commits to measuring the reduction of one
  


17        greenhouse gas, carbon dioxide, before 2030;
  


18        but the intergovernmental panel on climate
  


19        change has said that methane is 34 times
  


20        more potent as a greenhouse gas than carbon
  


21        dioxide over a hundred-year period and 86
  


22        times more potent over 20 years.  Why then
  


23        is methane being ignored?  This appears to
  


24        be very blatant favoritism toward the oil
  


25        and gas industry.
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 2            The draft plan also lacks targets for
  


 3        energy efficiency and commits to efficiency
  


 4        programs only through 2020.  It encourages
  


 5        the use of what it calls alternative fuel
  


 6        vehicles, which are likely to be based on
  


 7        using natural gas instead of establishing
  


 8        specific targets to advance electric and
  


 9        hydrogen fuel-cell technology.
  


10            In what is probably its most glaring
  


11        deficiency, this plan makes no mention
  


12        whatsoever of the 2013 study headed up by
  


13        Stanford University Professor Mark Jacobson
  


14        which shows how New York can switch entirely
  


15        to renewables by 2030.  Very simply put,
  


16        switching to renewables right away is what
  


17        we need to do in order to attempt to avoid
  


18        the worst-case scenarios of climate
  


19        catastrophe.  It is very clear that the next
  


20        20 years will be crucial in that regard.  So
  


21        then why are we not doing this?  This energy
  


22        plan does not even specify what our energy
  


23        portfolio will look like; how much energy
  


24        will come from what sources.  Is that
  


25        because the intention is for most of it to
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 2        come from natural gas?
  


 3            Well, I haven't even mentioned nuclear
  


 4        power or the Indian Point plant until now;
  


 5        and the reason is because it seems so
  


 6        obvious that we shouldn't even be
  


 7        considering such a dangerous source of
  


 8        energy.  Okay.  Do you want to call it clean
  


 9        because you don't smell anything or see
  


10        anything?  It's radioactive.  It's
  


11        dangerous.  It will kill us.
  


12            This plan must be revised to include
  


13        much more aggressive goals for development
  


14        of solar, wind and other sustainable energy
  


15        technology.  It must establish much more
  


16        ambitious goals for energy efficiency, and I
  


17        would like to insist on much more rapid
  


18        reductions in emissions of all greenhouse
  


19        gases, and that means methane, not only CO2.
  


20        Anything less is completely unacceptable.
  


21            The people of New York State will not
  


22        stand for it.  We insist on an energy plan
  


23        that will not destroy our health, our
  


24        climate and our future.  Thank you.
  


25            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
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 2            Next up is David Doll, followed by
  


 3        Judith Canepa.
  


 4            First may I just ask for a process
  


 5        remark or we would like to keep the comments
  


 6        to five minutes, and Valerie will remind
  


 7        you.  Thank you very much.
  


 8            MR. Doll:  Thank you.  My name is Dave
  


 9        Doll.  I am with a group here in Brooklyn.
  


10        We are the Citizens Against the Rockaway,
  


11        Coalition against the Rockaway Pipeline
  


12        where they want to run a pipeline through
  


13        Gateway National Recreation Area, an area
  


14        that was set up for New Yorkers by an act of
  


15        Congress a long time ago because they
  


16        realized we need a place to unwind.  We
  


17        can't all afford to go to the Hamptons and
  


18        to the Jersey Shore.  So we have a place to
  


19        go called Riis Park.  It's a beautiful jewel
  


20        of a beach here in New York, accessible by
  


21        bus, by transit, and it's a wonderful place,
  


22        and they want to turn it into an industrial
  


23        park.  So right off the bat we have some
  


24        problems here.  You know, this is
  


25        unacceptable.
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 2            My mind is all over the place.  The
  


 3        gentleman who was speaking about the safety
  


 4        of nuclear power before might want to talk
  


 5        to the corpses from Chernobyl, Fukushima,
  


 6        people who got sick from Three-Mile Island,
  


 7        all of these different cases that nuclear
  


 8        power is not safe.  So that's kind of pretty
  


 9        self-evident.
  


10            I have met a lot of people in this anti-
  


11        fracking thing that's going on who are
  


12        trying to educate people that we believe
  


13        what's wrong about fracking, and I have met
  


14        people in Pennsylvania who have become sick
  


15        from the fracking process.  Their water has
  


16        become polluted.  While we are waiting for
  


17        Mr. Cuomo to come out with his report to say
  


18        whether or not it's safe or not, I mean, I
  


19        would like anybody who thinks fracking is
  


20        safe to drink some fracked water and drink
  


21        some of the water that's been coming out of
  


22        people's wells after fracking has happened.
  


23        You may have a lake with a hundred thousand
  


24        people living around it and nobody wants to
  


25        have fracking.  One person does it, and the
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 2        water gets polluted for everybody.  It's a
  


 3        cancer on our society.
  


 4            I think it's amazing that there is a
  


 5        group of nuns in Kentucky, and I can't
  


 6        remember the order now, but I saw this
  


 7        thing, the Sisters of Loretto, and the
  


 8        sisters have been there for, I believe, 165
  


 9        years on this property.  They have been
  


10        stewards of the property, and they have
  


11        lived off the land there.  They have been
  


12        doing a wonderful job of it.  They mind
  


13        their business and are not causing any
  


14        environmental degradation, and the fracking
  


15        companies have basically come along and said
  


16        we want to run a pipe through your property,
  


17        and the sisters said, we don't want to do
  


18        that.  So the company has basically said,
  


19        well, other people in your community are
  


20        amenable to this, so you can either play
  


21        along with us or we are just going to get --
  


22        you know, use what-you-ma-call-it, eminent
  


23        domain and get what we want anyway, so why
  


24        don't you just take some money and go away?
  


25        And so I think they have picked a battle
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 2        that might be more than they thought of, you
  


 3        know, going after some nuns.
  


 4            And I mean, this is -- it's pretty
  


 5        outrageous, isn't it, that this occupying
  


 6        force of energy companies who are basically
  


 7        the same thing as our subprime mortgage.
  


 8        It's the same people who are behind these
  


 9        companies.  This isn't about American energy
  


10        independence.  It's not about clean energy
  


11        for our country or anything.  It's all about
  


12        greed.
  


13            You know, my girlfriend was in the
  


14        hospital at Maimonides in Brooklyn recently,
  


15        and I looked out from the tenth floor.
  


16        There was a lobby there that in between
  


17        tests and all you can go just kind of look
  


18        out on the land there.  And there is not
  


19        one -- I looked, I could see Bayside, all
  


20        the way out to Rockaways.  You don't see one
  


21        solar power.  And Jersey is number two in
  


22        the country in solar, and New York is really
  


23        lagging behind.  And if we don't get our act
  


24        together, I think our bodies -- I am not a
  


25        science teacher, but I think our bodies are
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 2        83 percent water so basically we are just
  


 3        lugging around water, and if we don't
  


 4        protect our water, we are dead.  We are
  


 5        doomed.
  


 6            So it's up to you guys, and I thank you
  


 7        for being here, as we are telling what you
  


 8        we know about it and the science is showing,
  


 9        we are hoping that you understand that this
  


10        involves all of us, no matter what your
  


11        religion is, how much money you have, we all
  


12        need water; and without water, we are really
  


13        up the creek without a paddle.
  


14            So I hope that somehow common sense is
  


15        going to rule, and it's not going to be
  


16        money because money is going to ruin this
  


17        whole thing.  If we keep being greedy and
  


18        letting greed run the game, we are in
  


19        trouble.
  


20            I mean, the subprime mortgage caused a
  


21        lot of pain and a lot of grief, but once we
  


22        ruin our water supply, there is nothing
  


23        left.  Capiche?  Have a nice day.
  


24            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Judith Canepa followed
  


25        by Robert Alpern.
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 2            MS. CANEPA:  I am Judith Canepa, and I
  


 3        am with the New York Climate Action Group
  


 4        and also again the Coalition Against the
  


 5        Rockaway Pipeline, and this is a federal
  


 6        project, this pipeline.  However, the State
  


 7        of New York has a part to play in it, and so
  


 8        when I think of the term "bridge fuel,"
  


 9        particularly for my group, I think of a gas
  


10        fuel line going under a bridge.  That's how
  


11        I see it as a bridge fuel.  It's a line
  


12        that's already been laid from Kings Plaza
  


13        Shopping Center all the way down to and
  


14        under the Marine Park Bridge.
  


15            The only other way I can see gas as a
  


16        bridge fuel is the image in my mind is you
  


17        build a bridge off of a cliff and you have
  


18        nothing to hold the bridge up and eventually
  


19        you run out of materials and the bridge
  


20        crumbles and we fall into the chasm of
  


21        runaway climate change, and this is fuel
  


22        that's being given preference in the energy
  


23        plan.  I find it very sad.
  


24            I see that Mr. Norris is with the
  


25        Department of Environmental Conservation,
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 2        and I think the word "conservation" is the
  


 3        key here.  If we talk about renewable
  


 4        energy, and we talk about the other ideas
  


 5        that we have, we still have to consider the
  


 6        unsexy but essential answer to our energy
  


 7        woes is to use less.  We can certainly do
  


 8        that, and we need the State to lead the way
  


 9        in using less.  One of the ways that we can
  


10        use less energy, and it's pretty
  


11        interesting, and I don't know if you have
  


12        heard about it, I know you heard about
  


13        fracking.  I know you heard about the -- I
  


14        know you heard all of these things.  So I
  


15        repeat them, but you have heard them.  One
  


16        of the interesting other ideas that maybe
  


17        you haven't heard about is called the
  


18        passive house.
  


19            You have?  Maybe you have.  The passive
  


20        house, it's an envelope around your house.
  


21        It cuts the energy needs in the wintertime
  


22        and the summer.  It insulates the house to
  


23        such a degree that in northern European
  


24        countries that are using passive house
  


25        technology they have barely turned on their
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 2        furnace.  All the heat coming out of the
  


 3        refrigerator, the heat -- the heat that's
  


 4        coming out of all the appliances, the heat
  


 5        that's coming out of the people and the
  


 6        dogs, really do heat the house because the
  


 7        heat doesn't escape.  It's just one idea.
  


 8            I think it's time for us all to be bold,
  


 9        to shed our titles and our official
  


10        designations and recognize that we are -- we
  


11        are being asked -- it's in our hands right
  


12        now, the future of life on Earth, and New
  


13        York State has a part to play.  New York
  


14        state is not China or this country it's --
  


15        but it's a leading state, and it's an
  


16        influential state, and we have a part to
  


17        play; and the part we have to play right now
  


18        is so exquisitely crucial.  I ask you to go
  


19        beyond what your duties and assignments are
  


20        and I recognize that we are fighting for
  


21        your lives here, all of our lives and your
  


22        children.  Thank you.
  


23            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


24            We have Robert Alpern to be followed by
  


25        Alex Beauchamp.
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 2            MR. ALPERN:  I will try and be brief.  I
  


 3        have three questions, I have already raised
  


 4        them with Chairman Rhodes and Mr. Norris,
  


 5        but I do think that the answers to these
  


 6        questions help to frame the hearing.
  


 7            One of the questions is:  What is the
  


 8        significance that there is nothing about
  


 9        nuclear or fracking in Volume 1, which is
  


10        the plan itself?  I think if you can explain
  


11        that, it will go -- it will help to make
  


12        these more productive hearings.
  


13            A second question is, relates to the
  


14        forthcoming NYSERDA report on energy
  


15        efficiency and renewable resource
  


16        development, which is referred to in the
  


17        technical appendix.  More information about
  


18        that report and when it's going to be out,
  


19        why it really hasn't helped -- why it is not
  


20        out already would be, I think, important as
  


21        well since it goes to an important part of
  


22        the energy picture.
  


23            A third issue for me is making sure that
  


24        we have contact information for all members
  


25        of the New York State Energy Planning Board,
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 2        including the three that are appointed and
  


 3        are not heads of state agencies.  So in fact
  


 4        that we can dialogue with them and
  


 5        independently of the hearing process if
  


 6        that's necessary.
  


 7            I do want to put in a plug for
  


 8        reactivation of the New York State Water
  


 9        Resources Strategies.  Under legislation
  


10        that was passed in 1984, New York State
  


11        Energy -- New York State Water Resources
  


12        Planning Council was created with eight
  


13        agency heads and seven public members of
  


14        which I was one actually.  The Strategies,
  


15        in fact, were issued in 1988.  However, for
  


16        over a decade the council hasn't met for --
  


17        although there is a requirement for updates
  


18        every two years, those requirements have not
  


19        been honored.  Not only is this important
  


20        for the energy picture because of the tight
  


21        connection between energy and water as a
  


22        source, as an extraction element, as a
  


23        cooling element, as a disposal element,
  


24        there also is a -- tells us something about
  


25        the fate of statewide plans such as the
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 2        Energy Plan.  What's really needed is to
  


 3        apply the State Water Resources Strategies
  


 4        at the same time as we move forward with the
  


 5        State Energy Plan.  Thank you.
  


 6            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 7            Alex Beauchamp followed by A. Jerry
  


 8        Kremer.
  


 9            MR. BEAUCHAMP:  Thanks.  I am Alex
  


10        Beauchamp.  I am the Northeast -- literally
  


11        no one -- I am the Northeast Region Director
  


12        of Food and Water Watch.  We are a national
  


13        consumer organization based here in New
  


14        York.
  


15            So I want to start today by saying that
  


16        if Governor Cuomo's serious about investing
  


17        in climate change, he must ban fracking.
  


18        This energy plan calls for 80 percent
  


19        reduction.  Many people mentioned the
  


20        greenhouse gases by 2050.  That goal simply
  


21        isn't attainable if Governor Cuomo opens the
  


22        state to hydraulic fracturing.  So I urge
  


23        Governor Cuomo and his administration to
  


24        prove his commitment on climate change by
  


25        banning fracking across the state, and this
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 2        is important because the decision to allow
  


 3        fracking in New York would be a direct
  


 4        contradiction to any promise to lead the
  


 5        state on climate change.  Not only will
  


 6        allowing fracking in New York increase our
  


 7        dependence on dirty fossil fuels we must
  


 8        turn away from, but it will also greatly
  


 9        contribute to emissions that further warm
  


10        and disrupt the climate.
  


11            Carbon dioxide is emitted from burning
  


12        natural gas and contributes significantly to
  


13        greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide.
  


14        The carbon dioxide emitted from burning
  


15        natural gas contributes significantly to
  


16        climate change; but it's not just about
  


17        carbon dioxide, unfortunately.  Fracked
  


18        natural gas releases massive amounts of
  


19        methane into the atmosphere during the
  


20        extraction process and transport of the gas.
  


21        We know that methane is an extremely,
  


22        extremely potent greenhouse gas.  In fact,
  


23        33 more efficient at trapping heat than
  


24        carbon dioxide is over a hundred years and
  


25        in the short term it's even worse, a hundred
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 2        times more potent than carbon dioxide over
  


 3        20 years.  Increasing evidence including a
  


 4        study lead by researchers at the National
  


 5        Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
  


 6        indicates that methane emissions from
  


 7        fracking-related operations have routinely
  


 8        been underestimated by both industry and the
  


 9        Environmental Protection Agency.  Given the
  


10        magnitude of these emissions from these
  


11        studies it's clear that allowing fracking in
  


12        New York dashes any chance we have of
  


13        keeping greenhouse gases level below what
  


14        scientists say are necessary to avoid really
  


15        catastrophic consequences.
  


16            And the simple truth is that you can't
  


17        be -- Governor Cuomo can't be ahead on
  


18        climate change and move forward with
  


19        fracking.  You simply can't do both, and so
  


20        I know this plan says relatively little, but
  


21        not none, but relatively little about
  


22        whether we should open the state to
  


23        fracking.  It does, as others have
  


24        mentioned, though, relied heavily on fracked
  


25        gas from other states.
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 2            So I urge Governor Cuomo to correct this
  


 3        egregious flaw.  New Yorkers are already
  


 4        experiencing disastrous effects of climate
  


 5        change.  It's time to move aggressively away
  


 6        from fossil fuels towards a truly renewable
  


 7        energy future.  Instead this plan under
  


 8        consideration locks us into years of more
  


 9        fossil fuels consumption, and we are at a
  


10        crisis.  Switching out one fossil fuel for
  


11        another simply isn't enough any more.  It's
  


12        not enough to get it done in New York.  We
  


13        really shouldn't be spending another dime on
  


14        fossil fuels infrastructure.  Yet this plan
  


15        explicitly promotes the acceleration and
  


16        expansion of natural gas specifically for
  


17        Initiatives 6, 8 and 9.
  


18            Finally, I think someone else mentioned
  


19        this but, but following the draft document
  


20        we are talking about an energy plan
  


21        something of a misnomer.  There is a lot of
  


22        pages.  There is not, in fact, a lot of
  


23        planning.  The document relies heavily on
  


24        flawed energy forecasts, and I will just
  


25        give a couple of examples.  One is the
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 2        document's own data showed wind and solar
  


 3        production doubled from 1990 to 2012.  This
  


 4        far outpaces every other energy source,
  


 5        including natural gas.  Despite the plan
  


 6        predicts a dismal future for anemic growth.
  


 7        It actually slows to zero in 2020.  So using
  


 8        these kind of dubious forecasts to predict
  


 9        the future, the plan becomes something of a
  


10        self-fulfilling prophecy.  Instead of
  


11        passively relying on forecasts, Governor
  


12        Cuomo should lead a course toward a true
  


13        renewable future with aggressive targets
  


14        with development of renewable energy and a
  


15        ramping down our reliance on fossil fuels
  


16        that got us into this problem in the first
  


17        place.
  


18            And so I will close by urging Governor
  


19        Cuomo and NYSERDA to go back to the drawing
  


20        board.  I think this energy plan, we at the
  


21        Food and Water Watch feel it's just fatally
  


22        flawed.  The reliance on dirty and call for
  


23        expanded use of fracked gas from other
  


24        states make it a complete non-starter.
  


25        Governor Cuomo should instead be a true
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 2        leader on climate change by banning
  


 3        fracking, creating a visionary plan to lead
  


 4        New York away from fossil fuels and towards
  


 5        renewable energy.  I want to thank you guys
  


 6        for being here, and that's all I got.
  


 7            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 8            A. Jerry Kremer followed by Reginald
  


 9        Bowman.
  


10            MR. KREMER:  Good afternoon, Mr.
  


11        Chairman.  I am the chairman of the New York
  


12        Affordable Energy Alliance.  We have been in
  


13        existence now for ten years.  We have 150
  


14        members.  It was formed after the blackout.
  


15        I would say in addition to that we are
  


16        probably the more broader-based energy
  


17        policy group here in the state.  We hold
  


18        hearings and forums.  We are interested in
  


19        getting the right information out.
  


20            First of all, I want to commend this
  


21        panel and the staff for making this effort.
  


22        I sat in the state legislature for 23 years.
  


23        I wrote the original power plant siting law
  


24        back in the '70s.  I worked with the
  


25        legislature on the revisions to the current
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 2        one, which was clearly a step forward for a
  


 3        law that was badly in need of revision, and
  


 4        I congratulate the State and the panel on
  


 5        this energy plan in its earliest stages,
  


 6        which is what it is.
  


 7            I don't candidly think that New York
  


 8        State has the luxury of starting out with an
  


 9        energy plan that rules out every conceivable
  


10        form of energy that we can use other than
  


11        one or two.  I know there is so much
  


12        discussion today about solar and wind, and I
  


13        participated in a panel two years ago with
  


14        T. Boone Pickens, who put his hand on my
  


15        shoulder and said, "Son, the sun doesn't
  


16        shine often enough in New York and the wind
  


17        doesn't blow often enough for me to invest a
  


18        dollar here."
  


19            And it was a fascinating comment.  If I
  


20        was an investment banker in the city of
  


21        Chicago, and I was looking at the State of
  


22        New York where I was sitting on billions of
  


23        dollars in funds, I don't think I would want
  


24        to come here because the rhetoric throughout
  


25        the state is what people don't want.  I
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 2        think at this stage you don't have the
  


 3        luxury of ruling out anything; whether it's
  


 4        natural gas or whether it's nuclear or
  


 5        whether it's LNG.  I don't think it would be
  


 6        fair to the people of this state until we
  


 7        create a real bridge to the future, which we
  


 8        don't have right now.  There is no such
  


 9        thing.  Maybe 20 years from now there are
  


10        going to be many perfected processes for
  


11        delivering energy, but we just don't have
  


12        them now; and to cavalierly say, let's shut
  


13        this one down and take this out of your plan
  


14        I think is a leap forward.
  


15            On the issue of wind, I might point out
  


16        the chairman of ConEd today made a statement
  


17        that he has abandoned the wind project from
  


18        the ConEd perspective because, as he put it,
  


19        the cost exceeds the benefits.  Quote,
  


20        unquote.
  


21            I attended a hearing five years ago on
  


22        Long Island for the construction of a wind
  


23        farm facility off of Jones Beach, and a
  


24        thousand people showed up at the hearing to
  


25        protest visual pollution.  That project
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 2        never went forward.
  


 3            So the problem with this as Senator
  


 4        Maziarz from Western New York will tell you
  


 5        that a wind proposal to build a modest wind
  


 6        farm in his district attracted 800 people in
  


 7        opposition and only two people who spoke for
  


 8        it.  So there are a lot of pitfalls with
  


 9        trying to do creative things.
  


10            We still have a big energy demand going
  


11        on in New York State.  We thought by 2015 we
  


12        would reduce energy demand by 15 percent.
  


13        Instead the demand keeps growing by -- in
  


14        the case of this year 2.6 percent, and it's
  


15        going to keep going on.  After every heat
  


16        wave that also points out the fact that a
  


17        lot of our facilities are aged, where they
  


18        are talking about trying to get repowering
  


19        for a number of plants, costs are very, very
  


20        high.
  


21            We do need cleaner sources of energy.
  


22        We need anything that's going to improve our
  


23        infrastructure, and then one of the things
  


24        that this panel has to be mindful of is that
  


25        government regulations should not
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 2        necessarily interfere with new ideas, and we
  


 3        think that's a crucial thing.  If people
  


 4        come forward with new concepts and new
  


 5        ideas, they shouldn't face, not only the
  


 6        prospect of increased taxes on almost
  


 7        anything, but the fact that the government
  


 8        after saying come on in and spend the money
  


 9        passes regulations which are deterrents.
  


10            We do have the highest rates in the
  


11        nation, and the decision of PSC to spend
  


12        $800 million of ConEd and Rapad's money as
  


13        an alternative to Indian Point is just
  


14        another burden on the consumer.  If Indian
  


15        Point is going to be relicensed -- and I
  


16        don't doubt in my mind that the NRC will
  


17        eventually, after years of court battles and
  


18        everything else, license Indian Point based
  


19        on their conclusion a long time ago that
  


20        it's safe.
  


21            What we can learn about closing power
  


22        plants, the object lesson is the Shoreham
  


23        Power Plant.  The people on Long Island are
  


24        still paying every day for the closure of
  


25        the Shoreham Power Plant.  People want to
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 2        talk about clean air, and there is no
  


 3        question in my mind that nuclear is clean,
  


 4        but also we have to start focusing on the
  


 5        economic impact of shutting down plants:
  


 6        The job that are lost, the taxes that are --
  


 7        there is nobody to pay them, and in effect
  


 8        the deterioration of the community.
  


 9            And Indian Point, I think it speaks for
  


10        itself.  It's there.  It's clean.  And as
  


11        far as I am concerned, it meets all our
  


12        standards.
  


13            I congratulate the panel for listening,
  


14        and you are going to hear a lot around the
  


15        state.  I can only tell you one thing.  I am
  


16        amazed as an observer who has traveled
  


17        around this state that people who live along
  


18        the ten counties that border Pennsylvania
  


19        each day look over that border and see
  


20        people working, and see people living,
  


21        people surviving, people not dying.  So the
  


22        whole concept is -- by the way, you can't
  


23        relate fracking to everything being bad.
  


24        This concept of the Liberty Project out in
  


25        the ocean people say they don't want it
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 2        because it leads to fracking.  There is no
  


 3        real connect.  You can't keep saying no
  


 4        fracking and no other form of energy.  They
  


 5        are irrevocably linked.
  


 6            Thank you for your time.
  


 7            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 8            Reginald Bowman followed by Martha
  


 9        Cameron.
  


10            MR. BOWMAN:  Good afternoon.  My name is
  


11        Reginald Bowman, and I am glad to follow
  


12        this gentleman because some of his views are
  


13        surprisingly similar to my own because I
  


14        really believe that if you are going to talk
  


15        about the energy in our state, you have to
  


16        realize that while you are planning for the
  


17        future, we are dealing with the ongoing
  


18        demand for consistent energy 24 hours a day
  


19        and seven days a week.  And it is
  


20        unbelievably surprising that as many people
  


21        in this room, and I respect everyone's
  


22        intelligence, and, you know, reasons for
  


23        wanting to have changes, do not realize that
  


24        if you are going to make changes and make
  


25        plans, you have to be reasonable enough to
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 2        deal with the consistent delivery of energy
  


 3        services in our city.
  


 4            I am the president of the Citywide
  


 5        Council of Presidents, and I represent all
  


 6        of the families that live in public housing
  


 7        in the City of New York, and this is not the
  


 8        first time that I have testified before a
  


 9        panel, and I support the licensing of Indian
  


10        Point primarily because -- well, let's hear
  


11        it -- primarily because at this point the
  


12        alternatives that are being presented,
  


13        whether they are wind, solar, or whatever
  


14        alternatives, none of them are actually
  


15        being implemented in time enough to continue
  


16        to supply power for this region, and the
  


17        economic impact that this would have if we
  


18        are going to all of a sudden start shutting
  


19        things down and have nothing to replace them
  


20        would create, not only an unnecessary
  


21        economic shift, but it will create hardships
  


22        for a lot of people in a lot of different
  


23        industries.
  


24            I think that practical approach to all
  


25        of this in planning for the future is to not
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 2        take adversarial positions against each
  


 3        other and say that this is bad, this is
  


 4        worse, and let's shut this down and shut
  


 5        that down because it leads to nowhere, and
  


 6        the institutions that -- or the machinery of
  


 7        the plants that are running and will
  


 8        continue to run anyway.  It is important, I
  


 9        think, for us to understand that if we shut
  


10        these things down, the energy -- if you shut
  


11        down Indian Point, the energy that we depend
  


12        on this side of the state will create a
  


13        problem because we will have less energy.
  


14        We will have to pay more for it, and it will
  


15        have a trickling economic impact on everyone
  


16        who works and lives in this side of town
  


17        that depends on that energy coming in here.
  


18            So again, I understand your opposition
  


19        to the past.  I understand the necessity of
  


20        change, and I understand the necessity for
  


21        dealing with all of the global changes that
  


22        have happened in my lifetime; but I also
  


23        understand the fact that you got a
  


24        consistent need for energy in New York City
  


25        that is being supplied by the sources that
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 2        are supplying it now.
  


 3            To propose the future you have to be
  


 4        practical, and in proposing the future you
  


 5        can't just switch off the lights and wait to
  


 6        have something to replace it because New
  


 7        York is not going to stop running, and
  


 8        neither is the rest of the state.
  


 9            So my proposal is to relicense, to stop
  


10        spending so much money fighting each other.
  


11        Relicense the Indian Point, and then sit
  


12        down and reason together like people for the
  


13        future of all of us involved because all of
  


14        us are in the same boat, and right now the
  


15        debate and the money that's being spent
  


16        fighting each other is not really
  


17        accomplishing anything, and those of us that
  


18        need this energy and that are having to go
  


19        back to work or coming back into the
  


20        economy, we need to be able to have
  


21        affordable energy because we all rely on it
  


22        every day.  Everybody has got a cell phone.
  


23        Everybody has got all of these things that
  


24        we are relying on.
  


25            So let's, I think, be reasonable.  We







64


  


 1                         HEARING
  


 2        need to make sure that energy is consistent
  


 3        and sustained and then sit down and put
  


 4        together a plan so that we can create
  


 5        sustainable energy and keep what is working
  


 6        working so that those of us that are
  


 7        dependent on it can continue to use it.
  


 8            So I support relicensing Indian Point.
  


 9        I think it's important to keep that source
  


10        coming, so that in the years while everybody
  


11        is debating on what we are going to do for
  


12        the future, we will still have an affordable
  


13        source of energy for your community.  Thank
  


14        you.
  


15            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


16            And may I just pick up on a word that
  


17        you used, "cell phone."  All of those that
  


18        have them, let's shut off our phones.
  


19            Martha Cameron to be followed by Damon
  


20        Cabbagestalk.
  


21            MS. CAMERON:  My name is Martha Cameron.
  


22        I am with Climate Action Brooklyn for Peace,
  


23        and also Coalition Against the Rockaway
  


24        Pipeline.  I didn't come here with typed up
  


25        notes, which is probably a bad thing.  I
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 2        have been listening to what everybody has
  


 3        been saying.  Obviously, from the
  


 4        organizations that I cited, you know where I
  


 5        stand on fracking, and you know where I
  


 6        stand on natural energy, and you know where
  


 7        I stand on renewable energy.  So I don't
  


 8        know that I need to really repeat all of
  


 9        that.
  


10            I was interested in the last two are
  


11        speakers and also the speaker from SHARE.
  


12        The point was made that we don't have enough
  


13        wind or solar power in this state to
  


14        interest T. Boone Pickens in investing here.
  


15        The fact of the matter is my electric bill
  


16        for the last year -- I just finished doing
  


17        my taxes -- was $281 for the entire year.
  


18        And most of that cost was the $17.95 that I
  


19        have to pay to ConEdison every month to keep
  


20        a meter in my cellar.  I have solar panels
  


21        on my roof, and I am one of four brownstones
  


22        in my neighborhood with solar panels.  We
  


23        could solarize this city.  And we could take
  


24        care of 40 percent of our peek electrical
  


25        need in the summer if we put up 500,000
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 2        solar panels on rooftops.  We should start
  


 3        with putting solar panels on all of our
  


 4        public institutions, on our public schools.
  


 5        This is a demand that we, as a group, are
  


 6        going to be placing on our new Mayor
  


 7        DeBlasio, but it is also a demand that we
  


 8        make of our government.
  


 9            Now I am deeply disturbed because as I
  


10        went out the door today my husband said to
  


11        me, oh, it seems that Energy Secretary Moniz
  


12        is putting pressure on Cuomo for fracking in
  


13        New York State.  Now it's very hard to fight
  


14        on so many levels.  We have Obama's
  


15        all-of-the-above plan, which is basically an
  


16        all-fossil-fuels-all-the-way plan.  Now we
  


17        are having to fight his energy secretary
  


18        interfering in New York State.  This is not
  


19        a good situation for us.
  


20            When everybody talks about how clean
  


21        nuclear power is, I think back a few decades
  


22        when I had four kids staying in my house who
  


23        were from Chernobyl.  They didn't think that
  


24        nuclear energy was so clean.  They were here
  


25        to get treatment.  People are dying still in
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 2        the Soviet Union, and they will be dying for
  


 3        years in Japan.  We should not be allowing
  


 4        the continuation of nuclear power plants in
  


 5        this country.  We need to shut down Indian
  


 6        Point now before 15 million people are
  


 7        nucleated or whatever the word is.  We need
  


 8        to start making the transition now.
  


 9            If we go with fracked gas, we are, first
  


10        of all, turning or state into an extractive
  


11        industry state.  This is a major economic
  


12        turn.  It will be very bad.  It would be
  


13        very good in the short run for the T. Boone
  


14        Pickens of this world.  It will be very bad
  


15        for the rest of us.  And after approximately
  


16        6 to 10 years there will be no more gas in
  


17        New York State because it is not the rich
  


18        source of fracked gas that Pennsylvania is.
  


19        There is a strip right along the border
  


20        there, the sweet spot, so-called.  We are
  


21        going to plow it out in no time at all and
  


22        in the process we are going to destroy the
  


23        thing that is infinitely more precious that
  


24        we have a whole lot less of on this planet.
  


25        We have less than three percent of the water
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 2        that's in this planet is fresh water and a
  


 3        great deal of it is concentrated in Ontario
  


 4        and in New York State.  And we are planning
  


 5        to destroy it.  Right now we can look at
  


 6        half the country that's in a terrible
  


 7        drought.  We have got 11 states that are in
  


 8        crisis, and we should recognize that water
  


 9        is the most essential element that we have.
  


10        We need arable soil.  We can't have arable
  


11        soil.  You can't grow food on soil that has
  


12        been exposed to ground water that's poisoned
  


13        with fracked fluids.
  


14            One of the things that disturbed me
  


15        about the opening statement you made was the
  


16        emphasis on market forces in this so-called
  


17        plan.  Energy must become a public good.  We
  


18        need to put it into the hands of the
  


19        government and take it away from the
  


20        privatized section -- sector.  It's that
  


21        that drives up the cost.  It's that that
  


22        makes for chaos in our energy plan.  It's
  


23        that that means that New York City residents
  


24        are paying extraordinarily high rates.
  


25            The other thing I would like to point







69


  


 1                         HEARING
  


 2        out is we are talking about a plan of going
  


 3        to total renewables by -- 80 percent
  


 4        renewables by 2050 and 50 percent renewables
  


 5        by 2030, and yet the IPCC, which is an
  


 6        extremely conservative international body,
  


 7        says we have 15 years before we face
  


 8        irreversible climate change.  Irreversible
  


 9        means it's over.  It's over.  I have nine
  


10        grandchildren.  My youngest grandchild will
  


11        be 15 years old in 15 years.  My oldest will
  


12        be 35.  I don't want that future for them.
  


13        I want them to have a future where there is
  


14        water, where there is food.
  


15            We can live without gas.  We can live
  


16        without oil.  We can live without coal, but
  


17        we cannot live without water and food, and
  


18        that's what this fight is about.
  


19            Edith Kantrowitz mentioned the issue of
  


20        just transition, and it's come up a couple
  


21        of times.  When we are talking about the
  


22        true plan for New York State, and this is
  


23        what I mean by making energy for public
  


24        good.  We need to take into account the
  


25        communities that are currently essentially
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 2        company towns for the power plants.  We need
  


 3        to take into consideration the 375 workers
  


 4        at Indian Point.  We need to pension them
  


 5        out at full pension even if they are not
  


 6        eligible yet.  Give them the money.  Shut
  


 7        down Indian Point, but transition them
  


 8        justly to new jobs.  We need their new jobs
  


 9        or pension.  If we rely totally on building
  


10        of the massive build-out of fracked gas that
  


11        we are doing right now, what we are doing is
  


12        creating path dependency.  We will be stuck
  


13        with that infrastructure for 50 years.  And
  


14        we haven't got 50 years.  I keep saying this
  


15        to you over and over.  We have 15 years.  We
  


16        need to take back 15 year period and put in
  


17        solar panels all over the place.  We need to
  


18        put in wind farms and not the LNG liberty
  


19        Port Ambrose thing that's planned out there
  


20        on Long Beach.  We need to stop building the
  


21        Constitution and the Rockaway and the
  


22        Spector Pipelines.  We need to stop opening
  


23        up compressor stations that are 500 feet
  


24        from people's houses.  We are poisoning the
  


25        people.  We are industrializing our rural
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 2        areas, and this is insane.  And this is not
  


 3        a plan that you have given us.  This is a
  


 4        prescription for death.  We need a change
  


 5        now.
  


 6            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you.
  


 7            Reverand Damon Cabbagestalk followed by
  


 8        Dr. Leonard Hatter.
  


 9            REVERAND CABBAGESTALK:  Hello.  How are
  


10        you?  Mr. Norris, Mr. Rhodes, Judith Lee?
  


11        This is not my first time appearing before
  


12        you.  My name is Reverand Damon L.
  


13        Cabbagestalk, Junior.  I just want to say
  


14        briefly to you that this is not the only
  


15        section of Brooklyn, and there are many
  


16        individuals that are not here that probably
  


17        wish to be here to represent Brooklyn.  So
  


18        we need to go outside certain areas to reach
  


19        individuals as you can see the signs being
  


20        held up over there.  They are from some of
  


21        those areas that I am speaking about.  Let
  


22        me just say that I am a pastor of Joppa
  


23        Christian Ministries, and I am also a human
  


24        rights leader if I may say.
  


25            We are talking about energy, and we are
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 2        talking about people's lives.  Now we didn't
  


 3        get this far by just sitting around the
  


 4        table dealing with numbers and papers and
  


 5        ink and papers.  It was a struggle by the
  


 6        people's voice.  It was a struggle by a need
  


 7        of action, and I heard the President say
  


 8        that this is a year for action, I believe.
  


 9        So the question here today is, whatever you
  


10        have in front of you or whatever have been
  


11        presented to you to do the right thing must
  


12        be action.  Must be action.  But allow me to
  


13        say that there are children involved here.
  


14        Not only adults, but children of the
  


15        community.  Families throughout New York
  


16        City, they support -- they support -- you
  


17        may not see them here.  They support the
  


18        Indian Point, and you may have a list of
  


19        some of them there, too.  Okay?  What we are
  


20        dealing with is we are talking about this
  


21        post-Hurricane Sandy era.  I was out in Long
  


22        Island where we had no lights for over
  


23        16 days while those that at the top level
  


24        was getting the money and then all of a
  


25        sudden saying I am going to retire.  I am







73


  


 1                         HEARING
  


 2        going to retire.  And we are going to shut
  


 3        this down.  I was one of those who helped
  


 4        organize out there to get that to where it
  


 5        was, to look into what was going on out
  


 6        there.  Snow as it is here, no electricity.
  


 7        No -- just eating out of a can.  I
  


 8        understand because I have been part of that,
  


 9        but I want to say to you today that we are
  


10        also rate payers in this, and we need
  


11        affordable, affordable rate pay.  We need a
  


12        system that's going to work, and we need a
  


13        system that's going to be clean.  Okay.  We
  


14        need change, but we don't need the same
  


15        change that has been going on with the
  


16        bureaucracy as those that call themselves
  


17        the political leaders that have been chosen,
  


18        called throughout the democracy to help the
  


19        people of the land.  It just does not work
  


20        any more.  Look around.  You read the
  


21        papers, I am assuming, every day.  You watch
  


22        CNN.  You watch New York 1.  Look around
  


23        you.  It's all fallen.  Everything that we
  


24        have created is going to pieces on us.  Why?
  


25        Because we choose not to do the right thing.
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 2        You know what the right thing is.  You have
  


 3        the statistics.  You have different stories,
  


 4        different testimonies.  But the realities of
  


 5        the facts still remains:  What are you going
  


 6        to do about it?  What are you going to do
  


 7        about it?  This must ensure that it is safe
  


 8        and reliable and affordable energy for us.
  


 9        We strongly urge you to continue to operate
  


10        the Indian Point.
  


11            I need water.  You need water.  I heard
  


12        the gentleman say that our body is made up
  


13        of -- what do we do without it?  We all die.
  


14        God saw that it was time for us to get a
  


15        cleansing in the city so he sent some
  


16        showers today so we could move our cars and
  


17        get out of our houses and get back to work.
  


18        The reality of the fact is we are not in
  


19        control.  We need to really seriously sit
  


20        down and take a look at what we are dealing
  


21        with to move forward because it's not that
  


22        many years left for any of us on this earth.
  


23        So if we are going to do something, we need
  


24        to do it right, and we need to do it now.
  


25        And I want to thank you for hearing me out,
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 2        and let this not be the last time that you
  


 3        hear my voice because we need voices that
  


 4        are right today, not belittling sound, but
  


 5        that are right.  Thank you and God bless
  


 6        you.
  


 7            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 8            Leonard Hatter followed by Jamie Mott.
  


 9            REVERAND HATTER:  Good afternoon.  My
  


10        name is Reverand Leonard Hatter.  I am the
  


11        counselor of Courage to Change in the
  


12        Brownsville Community, also representing the
  


13        churches in our community, but I come here
  


14        today to talk about and be a part of the
  


15        opening of -- the remaining opening of the
  


16        Indian Point.  The relicensing the Indian
  


17        Point Energy Center is a great -- is a right
  


18        move for Brooklyn low income African and
  


19        Caribbean American families.  With asthma
  


20        great and is already at the crisis level
  


21        throughout the low income Brooklyn, we need
  


22        more clean energy.  We need more clean
  


23        energy like Indian Point, not fewer.  Asthma
  


24        is among the leading causes of
  


25        hospitalizations and missed school days for
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 2        African and Caribbean Americans' children in
  


 3        New York City; and if closed, Indian Point
  


 4        would be replaced with the same dirty power
  


 5        plants that currently put our children at
  


 6        risk from the beginning.  Despite the fact
  


 7        that our children and seniors are more at
  


 8        risk for asthma and that the air quality in
  


 9        New York City is already in violation of
  


10        federal standards, the voice of low income
  


11        Brooklyn has been silenced up until now.
  


12        Brooklyn religious community is united in
  


13        the belief that New York has energy; that
  


14        New York energy future must be clean and
  


15        free from greenhouse gas.
  


16            The crucial first step towards securing
  


17        the clean energy future is keeping Indian
  


18        Point open and opportunities and operational
  


19        for many years to come.  Religious
  


20        institutions throughout Brooklyn recognize
  


21        that Indian Point provides the clean, safe
  


22        and affordable energy in New York City.  New
  


23        York City needs in order to curb clean
  


24        pollution and reduce asthma rates throughout
  


25        our neighborhoods; we also understand that
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 2        nuclear power is a safe and proven way to
  


 3        produce greenhouse gas.
  


 4            I just want to say -- stop there and
  


 5        say, I have three children that suffer from
  


 6        asthma.  Do you know what it is to have a
  


 7        child trying to breathe, to gasp for air on
  


 8        a summer afternoon?  Do you know what it is
  


 9        to take them to the park on a summer
  


10        afternoon and they can barely breathe?  Do
  


11        you know what it is to have the school call
  


12        you and saying, we are on our way to the
  


13        hospital with your child because she could
  


14        barely breathe?  We need Indian Point to
  


15        stay open.  Our seniors with heart
  


16        problems -- we need Indian Point to stay
  


17        open because we need clean air.
  


18            I am in Canarsie.  If you are anywhere
  


19        around Canarsie and you see in the schools
  


20        the asthma rate has risen to no end because
  


21        our children, and the sad thing that to see
  


22        is many of our children in our school system
  


23        and in our communities suffering with asthma
  


24        and gasping from asthma today.
  


25            So I welcome Indian Point to stay open
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 2        so that our children and our families
  


 3        together can grow and breathe fresh air,
  


 4        good energy air.  I thank you.
  


 5            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 6            Jamie Mott followed by Tom Ryan.
  


 7            MS. MOTT:  I apologize, I don't have
  


 8        notes with me.  I am kind of just speaking
  


 9        off the cuff, so I want just to address
  


10        certain points that people have made.
  


11            I have a chronic illness.  I don't know
  


12        how I got it or where it came from.  Doctors
  


13        don't really know, but it pretty much
  


14        devastated my life.  I used to really like
  


15        who I was when I was healthy, and I can
  


16        honestly say that I struggle to find new
  


17        ways to like myself currently.  It's just
  


18        very challenging, and I don't wish this on
  


19        anybody, and I am very concerned about what
  


20        will happen to our water supply if we go
  


21        forward with fracking in New York, and if we
  


22        open up a whole industry centered around,
  


23        you know, fracked gas.
  


24            You know, people make the point a lot
  


25        that, you know, all of this fracking creates
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 2        jobs, but I also wanted to address what
  


 3        happens when you get a disability is that
  


 4        you lose your ability to work, so the jobs
  


 5        that you have you can't do any more.  So I
  


 6        wanted to address, I think, people with
  


 7        disabilities I think they have like -- I
  


 8        don't know the fact exactly -- but it's I
  


 9        think a 20 to 30 percent employment rate.
  


10        So unemployment does get created around loss
  


11        of health.
  


12            So what's the other point that I wanted
  


13        to -- well, just something that's shocking
  


14        to me is I am from California, and I used to
  


15        teach about global warming, and there was
  


16        this computer prediction of what would
  


17        happen if, you know, sea levels rose.  And
  


18        one example was, you know, a computer
  


19        simulation of what could happen to
  


20        Manhattan.  So it was shocking when I moved
  


21        here and that I saw that computer simulation
  


22        in real life.  So you know, global warming
  


23        is very real, and it's happening here, and I
  


24        guess I really hope that New York will be a
  


25        leader in this, in creating new renewable
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 2        sources instead of going down the same path
  


 3        of using non-renewable energy.
  


 4            I also wanted to comment about how when
  


 5        there is the political will and the economic
  


 6        will to create new solutions, they are
  


 7        definitely possible.  My brother works for
  


 8        Tesla Motors, and Elon Musk is a big leader
  


 9        in renewable technology, and right now they
  


10        are creating new battery technology that
  


11        will be able to store solar power for a lot
  


12        longer, so that way it's something that
  


13        people can use in their own home a lot
  


14        easier.
  


15            So it's like when the will is there,
  


16        these things really are possible.  So I
  


17        beseech you all to, you know, really think;
  


18        and if you are having trouble making
  


19        decisions about what to do, go to
  


20        Pennsylvania yourself and see what is
  


21        happening like on ground -- on the ground
  


22        level because I feel like that will really
  


23        help you to make these really difficult
  


24        decisions for the future of New York and
  


25        humankind.  Thank you.
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 2            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 3            Tom Ryan, to be followed by Marge Schab.
  


 4            MR. RYAN:  Good afternoon.  My name is
  


 5        Tom Ryan.  I would like to make a couple of
  


 6        apologies.  I am not a professional orator.
  


 7        That's why I have written my comments down
  


 8        so save everybody from stammering and
  


 9        stuttering.  I am also a native-born
  


10        Brooklynite, so please excuse my gruff
  


11        voice.  I am not used to a microphone.
  


12            Once again, my name is Tom Ryan.  I
  


13        serve as the assistant business manager for
  


14        Boilermakers Local 5, which covers New York
  


15        State and Long Island throughout the
  


16        mid-Hudson region and to the North Country.
  


17        On behalf of my union brothers and sisters
  


18        throughout New York City, Long Island,
  


19        upstate, and most important, Brooklyn, I
  


20        thank you for holding today's hearings.
  


21            To keep the lights on and revitalize our
  


22        economy, it is critical that we take a
  


23        realistic and balanced approach to
  


24        safeguarding our energy future.  This will
  


25        require that New York continues to support
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 2        clean, safe and reliable power resources
  


 3        such as nuclear, natural gas and hydropower
  


 4        sources within the State of New York.  The
  


 5        continued development of alternative energy
  


 6        resources such as wind, solar, geothermal,
  


 7        et cetera, may also be important to
  


 8        complement New York's baseload power
  


 9        infrastructure.  Additionally, utilizing the
  


10        latest technology to turn fossil fuel
  


11        resources into clean-burning baseload energy
  


12        resources is critical to creating jobs,
  


13        especially with the new natural gas combined
  


14        cycle heat recovery steam generators in
  


15        addition to the selected catalytic reducers
  


16        and also the air cooling condensers which
  


17        save our natural resources of water.  Very
  


18        important for New York.  As well as the
  


19        clean coal sequestration, which I won't get
  


20        into now.  That's something else we are
  


21        definitely in favor of and would rather see
  


22        our money go to that than wasting it on wind
  


23        and solar research.
  


24            The plan has identified energy
  


25        efficiencies as the priority resource for
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 2        meeting its multiple objectives.  While
  


 3        energy conservation and efficiency must be a
  


 4        vital component of any State Energy Plan,
  


 5        you can't substitute that efficiency and
  


 6        conservation at the expense of baseload
  


 7        power.  No reasonable person is against
  


 8        efficiency, but it won't be enough.
  


 9            There are many solid issues within this
  


10        report.  In particular, I recognize the
  


11        board for supporting the use of existing
  


12        right-of-ways for transmission improvements.
  


13        This is vital to helping bring cheap energy
  


14        from upstate and Western New York, such as
  


15        Buffalo and North Country, Oswego, et
  


16        cetera, to where it is needed in downstate
  


17        New York.  This policy should be
  


18        strengthened by prioritizing current and
  


19        future electrical system upgrades to prefer
  


20        instate power production over importing
  


21        energy from out-of-state and, more
  


22        importantly, out-of-country sources, which I
  


23        will touch upon later.  This would address
  


24        the energy needs of te entire state by
  


25        allowing lower cost resources to serve
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 2        higher needs of the state.  The New York
  


 3        Independent System Operators reports more
  


 4        than 80 percent of the state's high-voltage
  


 5        transmission lines went into service before
  


 6        1980.  Forty percent of the existing
  


 7        transmission system will likely need to be
  


 8        replaced over the next 30 years at an
  


 9        estimated cost of more than 25 billion.
  


10            And I believe that comes directly from
  


11        the Energy -- Draft Energy Plan.
  


12            As my union brothers and sisters well
  


13        know, instate, instate power generation and
  


14        targeted upgrades are critical to the very
  


15        future of Central New York, Western New York
  


16        and the North Country.
  


17            I would also recognize the plan for
  


18        supporting additional research and
  


19        development in renewable energy.  However,
  


20        once again, I must voice concern with regard
  


21        to categorizing out-of-state, and most
  


22        importantly, out-of-country fuel sources as
  


23        renewable and eligible to be receive New
  


24        York ratepayer dollars as part the Renewable
  


25        Portfolio Standard program.  Sending our
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 2        greenbacks beyond our borders will export
  


 3        our energy jobs.  At the Boilermakers, we
  


 4        are ready to partner with the Administration
  


 5        to create jobs in New York State by New
  


 6        Yorkers for New Yorkers.  We firmly believe
  


 7        that New York should be powered in New York
  


 8        by New Yorkers.
  


 9            Between unprecedented weather events
  


10        such as Superstorm Sandy and of course
  


11        Hurricane Irene, and new records for
  


12        electric demands in both summer and winter
  


13        seasons confirms that New York needs more
  


14        energy, not less.
  


15            To maintain and enhance our quality of
  


16        life, New York needs to keep expanding its
  


17        use of clean baseload sources, particularly
  


18        instate nuclear and hydro resources.
  


19            Indian Point supplies enough power for
  


20        nearly one in every ten homes in our state,
  


21        and is in the midst of applying for license
  


22        renewal.
  


23            As I mentioned before, I am a native
  


24        born -- Livingston Hospital, I just dated
  


25        myself but -- and bred and born Brooklynite.
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 2        About ten years ago moved up to the Yorktown
  


 3        Heights within the so-called ten-mile kill
  


 4        zone.  It's a boy-meet-girl story, otherwise
  


 5        we would still be in Brooklyn.  Anyway, my
  


 6        four kids, my wife, myself all live within
  


 7        that ten-mile kill zone, and more
  


 8        importantly I have worked there numerous
  


 9        times, been in vapor containment, et cetera,
  


10        I am still here to live about it -- talk
  


11        about it.  So something to take into
  


12        consideration.
  


13            Last and most importantly, we oppose the
  


14        Champlain Hudson Power Express project and
  


15        urge the State to reconsider its support for
  


16        this ill-advised extension cord that will
  


17        run from Canada to Queens.  Attached to our
  


18        testimony is an open letter signed by the
  


19        Steamfitters, as well as other unions, IBW
  


20        and Utility Labor.
  


21            We are actually also calling for the
  


22        President of the United States and Congress
  


23        to reject this unnecessary and ill-advised
  


24        transmission line, and I thank you for your
  


25        time.  I see my time is up.
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 2            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 3            Marge Schab -- I hope I have that
  


 4        right -- and then Susan Filgueras.
  


 5            MS. SCHAB:  I plan to do more extensive
  


 6        comments since I have another conference in
  


 7        a couple months, but I felt very important
  


 8        to come here and hear all sides.  I have to
  


 9        say there are two things in my mind.  There
  


10        has been a misuse of the word "entitlement."
  


11        And entitlements of food stamps,
  


12        entitlements of housing, entitlements of
  


13        education, scholarships, of Social Security,
  


14        Medicare, of veteran benefits, they are all
  


15        good entitlements because they sew us all
  


16        together and make us strong; and then I
  


17        realized there is another entitlement that
  


18        we feel we are entitled, all of us, me
  


19        included, of endless use of energy in our
  


20        lives without really making the necessary
  


21        changes that we must.
  


22            We just had a union representative
  


23        talking about the aging infrastructure.  We
  


24        have to face the fact that we have to do
  


25        things differently, and we have to face the
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 2        fact that we cannot afford to make New York
  


 3        State a large manufacturing industrial zone.
  


 4        As someone said here, we need the soil.  We
  


 5        need the water, and we need the air.  The
  


 6        Weather Channel just posted a whole study of
  


 7        the affection of how gas development has
  


 8        ruined air in the Eagle Ford Shale.
  


 9            Air moves, and we cannot know about the
  


10        people of (inaudible).  I have met them and
  


11        there are times that they cannot breathe.
  


12        There are children that live in that area.
  


13        We eat the food from that area.  And the
  


14        compressor stations exude all kinds of
  


15        chemicals that hurt the population, and I
  


16        was also shown the metering stations, and as
  


17        you look underneath all the pipes were
  


18        corrosive pipes, and it's only eight years
  


19        old, and this means methane leaks and God
  


20        knows what else because the gas has to pass
  


21        through it.  And there is a whole process of
  


22        making -- of bringing natural gas or shale
  


23        gas, which really negatively affects us all.
  


24            Asthma, later we are going to see more,
  


25        you know, severe chronic illnesses; and all
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 2        these illnesses and negativity and
  


 3        industrialization of our state, the costs of
  


 4        that will fall on us, the taxpayers.
  


 5            So I made a resolution, a resolution in
  


 6        the new year, and it's hard to keep, but we
  


 7        must all keep it.  We have to really look at
  


 8        reality of what faces us.  We can't look and
  


 9        accommodate Pennsylvania by building the
  


10        infrastructure and the pipelines for the
  


11        Constitution Pipeline.  We can't build the
  


12        LNG plant at Port Ambrose.  We have to
  


13        honestly look because we can do it if we
  


14        want to.  We have done it before.  We will
  


15        do it for our future.  Let us face the
  


16        future honestly and do its -- work on the
  


17        renewables; work on retrofitting, work on
  


18        insulation; work on changes in the way we
  


19        get around.  Because the important thing is
  


20        to give life to the next generation.
  


21            So I ask you to turn away from all
  


22        fossil fuels.  Even the EIA says the only
  


23        fuel source or energy source that meets the
  


24        requirements that we cannot suffer from
  


25        global change is renewable.  So let's be
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 2        honest with ourselves and not make natural
  


 3        gas an infrastructure that devastates and
  


 4        industrializes our state, threatens our
  


 5        food, threatens our air, threatens our
  


 6        water; and let's face the real realities,
  


 7        and New York State actually could be a
  


 8        forefront for everybody else to model if we
  


 9        did.  So thank you.
  


10            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


11            Susan Filgueras followed by Lois
  


12        Pinetree and other last speaker's name we
  


13        have.
  


14            MS. FILGUERAS:  Thank you.  I would like
  


15        to say thank you first for coming here.  I
  


16        can't work with microphones.  It's in my
  


17        face.  If you don't -- it's like.  Okay.
  


18            I want to say thank you.  I have been
  


19        attending quite a few of these over the last
  


20        three years.  I am from a county called
  


21        Rockland.  Rockland is not on your public
  


22        site.  You are not having a public hearing
  


23        there.  Rockland isn't.  Westchester isn't.
  


24        Orange isn't.  Putnam isn't.  Duchess isn't.
  


25        Greene County isn't.  Those are the counties
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 2        that host a good part of New York State's
  


 3        energy infrastructure.  We have the
  


 4        pipelines.  They are putting a brand new
  


 5        44-inch high pressure gas line above my head
  


 6        where I live, the SPECTRA Aim Project 3.
  


 7        The Champlain Hudson Power Express, an
  


 8        extension cord from Hydro Quebec as a gift
  


 9        to all of the workers and New York State
  


10        residents:  No jobs, no money, no savings,
  


11        and eminent domain, and the person who will
  


12        have to press the eminent domain is Governor
  


13        Cuomo.
  


14            On CHPE's front of their front page of
  


15        Champlain Hudson Power Express website he
  


16        says, he quoted as saying the governor,
  


17        "It's a great thing for Canada."  I don't
  


18        live in Canada.  I live here.  I am
  


19        confused.
  


20            You are the energy planning folks.  Who
  


21        is the New York State Energy Highway?  Do
  


22        the plans work together?  Are they -- do
  


23        they meld?  Do we understand what one group
  


24        is going for with the other group?  It's
  


25        frightening because I have been working the
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 2        New York State Energy Highway, and I
  


 3        apologize, I don't read The Federal Registry
  


 4        with my morning coffee.  The Times, I can
  


 5        even get to the Wall Street Journal.  The
  


 6        Federal Registry defeats me.  I didn't know
  


 7        this was here.  The rest of the world
  


 8        doesn't know it's here unless you are
  


 9        following it, unless you are trying to find
  


10        it.
  


11            I am inviting you to Rockland County to
  


12        come to us and talk to us, the people who
  


13        host that energy infrastructure.  We had two
  


14        power plants:  The Bowline, the Lovett.  We
  


15        have four high-pressure, high-volume
  


16        interstate natural gas pipes that cross
  


17        Rockland.  The wires are even bigger.  And
  


18        the insult is the Champlain Hudson Power
  


19        Express, which will use eminent domain to
  


20        take our land to build an extension cord for
  


21        Canada.
  


22            The insult, the final piece of it -- and
  


23        I want you to know this -- is that the town
  


24        of Stony Point is a revolutionary war town.
  


25        We fought one of the most decisive
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 2        engagements of the revolution.  We won.  We
  


 3        chased the British out.  It was decisive in
  


 4        an area where battles were not fought
  


 5        decisively.  They were fought to a
  


 6        standstill.  The Champlain Hudson Power
  


 7        Express will desecrate the Stony Point
  


 8        battlefield where soldiers were buried where
  


 9        they stood, where they stood, where they
  


10        died.  And the plan is, I don't know what
  


11        other word to use that's not insightive
  


12        (sic).  They plan to disinter the Waldron
  


13        Revolutionary War and War of 1812 Cemetery,
  


14        which was part of the original from Patton,
  


15        from McCain.  These are men and women who
  


16        fought in the American Revolution for our
  


17        right to stand here, your right to be chair
  


18        of the Energy Planning Board.  These are the
  


19        men and women who stood up and said, we
  


20        believe.  And now we are going to dig them
  


21        up.
  


22            So I am asking.  I am confused.  I don't
  


23        have enough time.  I had to take the day
  


24        off.  I come from West Point.  I couldn't
  


25        find parking, God bless you guys.  And my
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 2        question is:  Which is it?  Is it an energy
  


 3        plan?  Is it an energy highway?
  


 4            Added to this, this is the
  


 5        infrastructure that is going to Rockland
  


 6        County at 7.2 miles:  A 1,000 megawatt high-
  


 7        tension electric line which will dig up our
  


 8        cemeteries; a 44-inch high-pressure natural
  


 9        gas line from in front of the Lovett Power
  


10        Plant site across the Hudson River, which
  


11        will come above ground at Indian Point very
  


12        near the Spence Rye fuel -- I have to say
  


13        that slowly -- I am sorry.
  


14            Added to that, shipping will cross over
  


15        four high-pressure natural gas lines.  The
  


16        44-inch, which is brand new, a 24, 22 and I
  


17        think a 28 that have been there for at least
  


18        the last 30 years.  And the West Point
  


19        Power -- the West Point Power Express, West
  


20        Point Power Partners -- excuse me -- I am
  


21        sorry -- will cross the 44-inch high-
  


22        pressure gas line on Indian Point land.  I
  


23        am confused.
  


24            Please come to Stony Point.  Allow the
  


25        people who host all of this infrastructure
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 2        to be heard by your group:  Rockland,
  


 3        Orange, Westchester, Putnam and Duchess.  We
  


 4        need to be heard, too.  But I thank you for
  


 5        coming, and I thank you for allowing me to
  


 6        speak, and I think I can give you these.
  


 7        This is a picture.  And I also submitted --
  


 8        oh, and I forgot the last thing, we are
  


 9        going to desalinate the Hudson River.  We
  


10        are less than a mile from Indian Point, so
  


11        we'll have a desalination plant along with
  


12        the thousand megawatts, along with the
  


13        44-inch high pressure gas main.  So I am
  


14        submitting the testimony I gave to the
  


15        Public Service Commission on the United
  


16        Water Desal Plant, and we met with Richard
  


17        Kaufman at the first part of January of this
  


18        year.  I have given you that as well.
  


19            Please come to Rockland County and hear
  


20        us.  We really need a lot of help because we
  


21        are confused.  Two plants.  Who do we talk
  


22        to?  Thank you.
  


23            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


24            Lois Pinetree?
  


25            MS. PINETREE:  Thank you for having a
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 2        mike for short people.  My name is Lois
  


 3        Pinetree, and I am a New York City public
  


 4        schoolteacher, and I am a member of the
  


 5        CARP, the Coalition Against the Rockaway
  


 6        Pipeline.  And the reason that I joined this
  


 7        group is that part of New York State's
  


 8        energy plan apparently and the federal
  


 9        energy plan is to run a pipeline and install
  


10        a gas meter in station literally in the
  


11        middle of my community garden at Floyd
  


12        Bennett Field, which is in the Gateway
  


13        National Park.
  


14            Now, a community garden may sound like
  


15        small potatoes compared to the other issues
  


16        that have been discussed here, but I want
  


17        you to know that we are one of the largest
  


18        and oldest community gardens in the nation,
  


19        and we have between 300 and 500 gardeners.
  


20        I, personally, have been there gardening
  


21        since 1997, and I am one of the younger
  


22        members.  And the idea that my national park
  


23        that I had spent so many hours beautifying
  


24        and building the soil, from nothing -- it
  


25        was sand -- building, bringing compost in
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 2        and building that soil, and the idea that it
  


 3        is going to be polluted by a gas metering
  


 4        station, which we know is going to leak
  


 5        sooner or later; and that very good
  


 6        possibility that the birds and the wildlife
  


 7        are going to be driven away.  Perhaps you
  


 8        have heard of the canary in the mines.
  


 9        Birds do not like -- miners take canaries
  


10        into the mines because the birds will die if
  


11        there is a gas leak, and they know that if
  


12        that happens, they have to get out of the
  


13        mine.  Birds do not like methane, and there
  


14        is every good chance that this whole area
  


15        which -- and Jamaica Bay Wildlife Preserve
  


16        is not so far away, and we have the
  


17        grasslands, which is a big bird sanctuary.
  


18        These birds are just going to leave in the
  


19        presence of an industrial facility that does
  


20        not belong in a national park.  The national
  


21        parks were created to be a haven from
  


22        industry, not to be the place that industry
  


23        comes.
  


24            But I think I digress because there were
  


25        so many issues that were brought up today
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 2        like Indian Point, and I am sorry a lot of
  


 3        those people are not here now, but Indian
  


 4        Point is being apparently, to my great
  


 5        surprise, is being touted as safe, as clean.
  


 6        Nothing could be further from the truth.
  


 7        And also that it creates jobs and that we
  


 8        are used to having it here.  We are used to
  


 9        having Indian Point.  It's there already so
  


10        we might as well keep it.  I think the
  


11        people of Chernobyl and the people of
  


12        Fukushima were also used to having their
  


13        nuclear power plants, and someone mentioned
  


14        that, you know, I live nearby and there is
  


15        no problem and I walk by and I don't see any
  


16        problem, but by the time we see a problem,
  


17        it's going to be way too late.
  


18            New York City is I believe 25 miles from
  


19        Indian Point, and there is no possible
  


20        evacuation plan for New York City that could
  


21        possibly work given the population, the
  


22        amount of the population, and I probably am
  


23        dating myself.  No one has mentioned
  


24        Three-Mile Island, to me in rather recent
  


25        memory, Pennsylvania.  It's not 3,000 miles
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 2        away in Europe and Asia.  Pennsylvania had a
  


 3        very serious nuclear problem, and it really
  


 4        showed that nuclear power is untenable.
  


 5        It's not a clean source.  It's not reliable,
  


 6        and it is way overkill.
  


 7            And thank you to Martha Cameron who has
  


 8        installed solar panels on her roof.  And
  


 9        what we have -- I think there is so much of
  


10        what we are used to, what we are used to, we
  


11        are just used to gas.  You know, and we see
  


12        it and we use it and it's blue and it's
  


13        friendly, and they have such nice
  


14        advertising on TV and the children are all
  


15        running out of the buses.  You know, it's
  


16        all homey, and but the people in Germany,
  


17        for example, are used to -- and I actually
  


18        saw this on a film -- they are used to
  


19        30-foot high or approximately look to me
  


20        30-feet high solar panels that run for
  


21        40 miles along their highway and are
  


22        powering I believe it was 50 percent of the
  


23        energy needs of -- it might have been
  


24        Frankfurt.  It was one of the major German
  


25        cities.  You know, Germany is way ahead of
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 2        us.
  


 3            And in terms of jobs, I am all for
  


 4        American jobs.  I think there is nothing
  


 5        more important, and if you have, as Rachel
  


 6        Maddow pointed out in her little
  


 7        advertisement, when you have wind turbines,
  


 8        that you can't outsource those jobs.  It's
  


 9        Americans that are going to be running those
  


10        and are going to be fixing them.  So there
  


11        is so much that we have.  Maybe we have to
  


12        use our imagination a little bit to see what
  


13        can be done rather than what is.  And what
  


14        is leading us down a road of destruction,
  


15        and Sandy was just the beginning of, you
  


16        know, seeing the bottom fourth of our island
  


17        of Manhattan and most of Rockaway being
  


18        destroyed.
  


19            So I call upon the panel and upon the
  


20        governor to ban fracking in New York State
  


21        because we can live without gas, but we
  


22        cannot live without clean water and clean
  


23        soil.  Thank you very much.
  


24            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


25        That completes our list of speakers that
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 2        have given us their name.
  


 3            MR. DOLL:  Can I say one thing?  They
  


 4        had a special on Nova about five years ago
  


 5        and off the coast of Denmark there is an
  


 6        island about 700 people living on it back in
  


 7        the '80s they decided they were going to do
  


 8        better, and they cut out the waste and put
  


 9        in solar and wind power; and now 25 years
  


10        later they sold energy back to the mainland.
  


11        They did it in Denmark, and did it
  


12        (inaudible).
  


13            When I was a little kid they said, some
  


14        day solar power is going to be viable.  Now
  


15        it's 50 years later they are saying, some
  


16        day, but we are not ready yet.  We are not
  


17        ready yet.  We are ready.
  


18            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you.
  


19            MR. DOLL:  Thank you.
  


20            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  I'm sorry.  Your name
  


21        again?
  


22            MR. DOLL:  Dave Doll.
  


23            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Nicole Minichiello.  I
  


24        saw you just walk in, but you are our next
  


25        speaker.  Do you need a minute?  Are you
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 2        ready?  We are ready for you.
  


 3            MS. MINICHIELLO:  Mr. Rhodes,
  


 4        Mr. Norris.  I appreciate you holding this
  


 5        hearing.  I, however, wish it were at an
  


 6        hour that would be more accommodating to
  


 7        most people in New York.  I think it's
  


 8        strange that a public hearing would be held
  


 9        in the middle of the day.
  


10            And I also would like to say that I --
  


11        the pushing of some of environmental groups
  


12        has enabled these hearings to occur and has
  


13        pushed back the timeframe for a month from
  


14        what I understand on the -- so that the
  


15        series can be place, and I do appreciate
  


16        that you have listened to the public and
  


17        taken that time.
  


18            I think that, as this gentleman was
  


19        saying, and this was -- I am sure many
  


20        people who have been here today have said,
  


21        there is a problem.  We in the world, we in
  


22        this state, we in the country, in the city,
  


23        we need action.  And we need leadership on
  


24        alternative ways of doing business.  This is
  


25        not the way.  It's not the way to go forward
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 2        with gas.  It's not the way to go forward
  


 3        with oil, and it's not the way to do the
  


 4        same old thing in new ways, perhaps bigger,
  


 5        better and faster ways, but new ways like
  


 6        fracking.  It's not the way.
  


 7            We need you as our representatives,
  


 8        environmental conservation and the
  


 9        leadership of New York State to take action
  


10        and really lead us to a different place.  We
  


11        need solar.  We need wind energy.  And we
  


12        really do need conservation.  We need to
  


13        shut off the lights in buildings when no one
  


14        is there.  We need to stop wasting as much
  


15        as we do.  I buy a package of something, and
  


16        it comes under 15 layers of plastic.  That
  


17        takes energy to get that there.  That takes
  


18        oil to produce the plastic.  That takes tons
  


19        of other natural resources.  And as a state
  


20        we shouldn't accept that because we can do
  


21        much better.
  


22            It's ridiculous that you have to accept
  


23        as a consumer so much waste as part of your
  


24        daily life, and we just pretend when we put
  


25        it into our trash can that it goes off to
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 2        nowhere; that it disappears.
  


 3            In New York we know that's talked about,
  


 4        though.  We have had arguments through the
  


 5        Bloomberg years over waste and where to ship
  


 6        New York's waste.  And we have fought with
  


 7        different states about who is going to be
  


 8        the lucky, lucky recipient of all of that we
  


 9        produce, all the garbage we produce.  We as
  


10        a state I am sure have more area for
  


11        landfills, but landfills aren't a pretty
  


12        place.  They are not a pretty site, and what
  


13        I am saying in terms of energy is all of the
  


14        things that we waste, the garbage pickups,
  


15        and all that goes along with that also
  


16        produces waste.
  


17            So as the Department of Environmental
  


18        Conservation and the Energy Planning Board,
  


19        that is something that should be part of all
  


20        of this:  Solar panels, wind energy and
  


21        really a focus on conservation.
  


22            I am not sure -- I am not sure whether
  


23        there is -- how much sort of these hearings
  


24        are being given, but I hope they are being
  


25        given as much weight as they deserve.
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 2        Although, just like I said from the
  


 3        beginning, based on the time, it seems odd
  


 4        that these guys would come out at this time
  


 5        when many people are working and not
  


 6        available.  I do again appreciate you being
  


 7        here at all, and I do hope that we are able,
  


 8        as the public, to show you that we are
  


 9        excited about things like solar, like wind
  


10        energy, which I keep saying incorrectly,
  


11        wind energy and like conservation.
  


12            Fracking, I just want to back to that
  


13        for a minute is something we absolutely
  


14        don't want, don't need.  Don't want these
  


15        dirty pipelines coming into New York City,
  


16        and it's scary that they are being built
  


17        under our noses without the oversight that
  


18        should be there.  There is not the oversight
  


19        that should be there.  And there is so many
  


20        different groups that are responsible, but
  


21        everyone at the end of the day it's kind of
  


22        like how the Obamacare rolled out, the
  


23        website rolled out.  Everybody is
  


24        responsible for a little piece so at the end
  


25        of the day no one is responsible for
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 2        anything.
  


 3            Mr. Norris, as part the Department of
  


 4        Environmental Conservation I would expect
  


 5        that you and your team lead us on this.
  


 6        Please lead us on this.  We need protection
  


 7        for the public and for our environment.
  


 8            I appreciate again you listening today,
  


 9        and I really hope you take this home with
  


10        you and all the things that the folks here
  


11        have said.  Thank you.
  


12            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


13            There are no further speakers, so but we
  


14        will adjourn.  We will take a break, and if
  


15        more speakers come in, we will resume.  But
  


16        I am going to go ahead and make some of my
  


17        adjournment comments in a minute because
  


18        some of you may leave.
  


19            First of all, thanks from all of us on
  


20        the board to our host, Brooklyn College.
  


21        Thanks from all of us on the board to the
  


22        commentators.  You have given us much to
  


23        think about, and it's important to the
  


24        process and important to the finalization of
  


25        the report.
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 2            So thank you, and we will take the
  


 3        comments on the report with great
  


 4        seriousness and expect to do that as we
  


 5        continue towards the final.
  


 6            Please also remember, and this is for
  


 7        you and for anybody who will listen to you,
  


 8        that we welcome written comments as well
  


 9        submitted on our website up until
  


10        April 30th, www.energyplan.NY.gov.
  


11            And with that point we will pause and
  


12        resume for our next meeting.  Thank you all.
  


13            (Recess taken.)
  


14            CHAIRMAN RHODES:  We are adjourning this
  


15        session of the public comment.  So thank you
  


16        all.
  


17            (Time noted:  6:01 p.m.)
  


18
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20
  


21
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23
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